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In the midst of the sluggish recovery of major global
economies, Hong Keng recurded & modest growth of 2% in
20716. The city has made a reasonable start to 2017, with a
rebound in export volumes in ihe first quarter. However, a
number of uncertainties lie ahead,

Hong Kong-funded enterprises operaling locally and In the
Pearl River Delta face multiple challenges. In Hong Kong, a
number of thorny labour issues have far-reaching impact on
SMEs and on Hong Kong's overall competitiveness. As one
of the majer chambers of commerce, CMA always actively
expresses the industry's concems to the HKSAR Government
and raises pragmatic recommendations.

For instance, we have explored different proposals
regarding the MPF offsetting mechanism, including the one
to make an additional 1% coniribution o sach employee's
MPF account. We believe that this proposal is relatively
simple to administer and could benefit more employees.
The Government's proposal of implernenting an "Effective
Date' to abolish the offselting mechanism, on the other
hand, is too complicated, and most importantly, doss not
address the issue of overlapping functions between Long
Service Payments and the MPF. and will still increase the
financial burden of employers In the future. We will continue
to urge the Government to listen to the views of business
community, and will worke with other stakeholders lo forge
consensus and seek a solution acceptable to all.

The policy on waorking hours is another issue thal the
business sector is highly concermed about. The Standard
Working Hours Commiltee proposes lo adopl a legislalive
gpproach to mandale employers lo enter into wrillen
employment contracts to include working hours and overtime
remuneralion  arrangements  wilth  the lower incoms
employees. We Lhink that this policy has taken inlo account
the need of low inceme workers whilst giving due
consideration to the affordabilily of companies. CMA will
closely monitor the impacl of the palicy on the industry il itis
implemeanted.

QOur Mainland Affeirs Standing Committee also maintains
close liaison wilth mainland authorities o protect the
business interests and investments of our members in
Mainland China.
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I addition to safeguarding our indusiry's rights and interests,
CMA works to assist enterprises in response to changes in the
market and global economic landscape. With the high-gear
implementation of the Thirteenth Five-Year Plan”, "One Belt,
One Road" intiative and the "Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Bay Area Planning®, Hong Kong's industry is currently entering
a golden era. CMA strives to provide industry with up-tc-date
information, devoting resources to investigate the strengths
and positioning of Hong Kong, thus offering a relizble reference
for the government when formulating its industrial development
plans.

CMA also provides various support services for industrial
development, Last year we launched "Online HKBPE' a
new round-the-clock marketing and selling platform for
Hong Kong products. This has already allracted much
attention, with a significanl number of local brands joining.
This year, we will continue to roll out a series of promotional
campaigns (o increase he awareness ol this channel, We
are also planning lo expand the delivery service to Macau
and certain mainland cities to capitalise on the growth in
cross-border e-commerce.

Our signature and long-standing Hong Kong Brands and
Products Expo (HKBPE) will continue to expand its domain.
Following successful debuts in Macau and Taipei, the
Macau Expo was once again staged in April 2017, The
extended 5-day expo was successful, attracting over
200,000 visiiors,

The exposition took place in Beijing for the first time ever in
celebration of the 20th anniversary of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. [t, together with the
Hong Kong Brand Festival and a host of cultural
celebrations in Beijing, promoted Hong Kong industry's
many achievemenis to our mainland compatriots. We have
also decided to return to Wuhan, an impartant transportation
hub for central Ching, for another exposilion in September
2017. With its superb location, we are confident that the
event will achieve great results.

As a pioneer in lhe promotion of Hong Kong's brands, the
Hong Kong Brand Development Council is devoted lo
pursuing innovation and crealivily. Various brand awards
continue lo achieve significant success, attracling many
well-known and emerging brands. This is a lestament 1o the
recognition of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council,
and a reflection of our enterprises' determination to upgrade
and transform through brand building.

Another of CMA's key business area is product testing and
certification. Despite the poor global economic conditions of
last year, the CMA Testing and Certification Laboratories
continued o actively seek new business growth opportunities,
Including expanding into overseas markets and developing
innovative testing and certification services.
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B RFE President's Message

It is unlikely that the Hong Kong economy will improve
significantly in the near future. This means we have to intensify
our efforts to serve the needy in the community. Cnly when our
society is harmonicus and stable can our enterprises prosper.
CMA's efforts in respect of serving the wulnerable and
promoting social hammony last year were highly appreciated in
varous sectors, These activities included the Lunar New Year
Fireworks Dinmer Reception, New Year's Eve Countdown
Celebration, "Caring for the Community Programme® serial
activities and video recruitment for rehabilitated offenders., Over
15,000 people benefited from the various events.

For some decades, CMA has worked lowards nururing Hong
kong's youth, During this term, CMA has offered a total subsidy
of HK$30 million to all local tertiary institutions in support of
various educalional projecls. We will closely monitor the
application and effecliveness of the subsidised projecls.
Moreover, by sponsoring the living expenses of overseas
sludents studying in Hong Kong under the Education Bureau's
"Belt and Road® Scholarship Scheme, CMA can tie in with the
HKSAR's efforts in "Pecple-to-people Bonds® along the belt,
thus fostering future talent for the commercial sector.

This year marks the 20th anniversary of the establishment of the
HKSAR. In addition to the exposition and other projects hald in
Beijing, CMA also organised a series of public engagement
activities, including a photo contest, the "Hol Sum Lucky Lang”
Carnival Concert, and a Basic Law Calligraphy Inscriptions
Exhibition.

In a few months' time, | will be stepping down from the position
of CMA's President. Over the past two and a half years,
Hong Kong has experienced several major evenis — "Occupy
Central® movement, the political reform debate and the Chief
Executive Election, all of which have brought about conflicts in
the society. It is a challenging yet stressful task for me to lead
the industry to get through tough times. This would not be
posasible withoul the unlimited support and assistance of the
Vice Chairmen, General Committee members, CMA members
and the Secretariat, who have worked hard to ensure the
association's affairs continue to run smoothly. | would like to
extend my heartfelt thanks 1o each and every one of them!

We foreses fremendous opportunities for Hong Kong in lhe
years ahead, | hereby appeal Lo all of you for your continued
suppor for CMA and its worle so that we can together start a new
chapter in Hong Kong's business and economic developmant,
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Established in 1934, the Chinese Manufaclurers' Association of Hong Kong (CMA) is a non-profit making
industrial organisation. Over the past 83 years, CMA has grown significantly and it is now one of the
most representative industrial associations in Hong Kong. With over 3,000 member companies, CMA is
committed to promoting Hong Kong's industrial and commercial development.

CMA closely monitors developments in the international market and domestic and external
conditions that may affect Hong Kong's trade and industry. CMA's activities and services are
directed at the well-being of Hong Kong as a whole, and it places equal emphasis on fostering international
understanding and cooperation.
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Mission [
Pramoting trade and industrial development

Improving the business environmeant

Representing the induslrial sector in the formulation and implementation of Governmenl policies
Participating in community development work

Fostering international understanding and co-operation
Fulfilling corporate social responsibility
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The textile industry began to take moi'
in Hong Kong in the 1920s. Due to
migration of technology and capital
from mainland China after the Second
World War, the textile and garment

industry developed rapidly over the
following decades.
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The General Commitiee is the management and supervisary
body of CMA, who makes decisions on overall strategies,
policies and direclions, and oversess the operations of the
association. The 40th General Commitiee consists of
100 members and they are elected for a 3-year term from
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017. General Commitiee
members are from the business and manufacturing sector, all
of whom are experienced kay players in their fields. Their
major duly is to advise on the work of CMA and government’s
policies conceming the industry, Meetings are held on a
monthly basis, where members receive reports from the
Secretariat and discuss important issues. Past General
Commitlee members are appointed as Permarent Honorary
Presidents, Haoncrary Presidents and Honorary General
Committee Members, and they are welcome 1o give advice
onh association affairs.

Eia REHE Governance and Organisational Structure
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There are 14 standing commitiees under the 40th
General Committee, which are responsible for analysing
policies within their areas of experlise and review the
related work of the Secretariat. The General Committee
makes dacisions or puts forward recommendations to the
government based on the advice of the commillees. 8
Sub-commitiees and 42 Industrial Committees provide
support to different projects.
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HMBEEZERIRAREERRERED The General Affairs Standing Committee supervises the
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Secretariat on organisational structure and administration,

AL ENR - ZRENIEE and enhances the operational efficiency of CMA. The committee
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also acts as a convener of Industrial Committees. The
committee is chaired by First Vice President Ms Chan Suk Ling,
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The Finance Standing Commiltee oversees the finance
policy and menitoring cash and investment for CMA and
its subsidiaries. |t also ensures the effective deployment of
resources and reviews the effectivensss of the risk
management system. The committee Is chaired by
Legislative Council Representative cum Second Vice
President Mr the Hon Ng Wing Ka, Jimmy.
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Audit Standing Committee

The Audit Standing Committee monitors the financial trends
and internal controls. It ensures that the projects and services
are Implemented in accordance with the CMA's direction.
The commitiee also reviews the organisational structure and
performance of the Secretaral. The commitiee is chaired by
Execulive Commillee member Mr Lau M W, Joseph.

Members Affairs Standing Committee

The Members Affairs Standing Committee assists in
strengthening ties between members and broadening the
membership base. It gives recommendations on policies
relating to members' affairs. The committee is chaired by
Vice President Dr Shi Lop Tak, Allen.

Mainland China Affairs Standing Commiittee

The Mainland China Affairs Standing Committee examines
the policy in major areas of trade and economy, industrial
development and labour in Mainland China. To keep
members informed aboul the business environment in
China, the committee maintains close liaison with Mainland
authorities and associations. The commitiee is chaired by
Vice President Dr Tsui Ping Kwong, Edward.

Social and Community Affairs
Standing Committee

The Social and Community Affairs Standing Carmmittee
strengtnens the bonding with the community and other
associations through various activities, aiming to encourage
community services and promote social cohesion. The
committee is chaired by Vice President Dr Tsui Ping Kwong,
Edward.
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International Affairs Standing Committee

The International Affairs Standing Committee looks at
international trade and investment policies, fosters
international and bilateral trade relations and protects the
interests of members in foreign countries. To keep up with
the latest changes in the world, the commitlee mainiaing
good communication with consulates and hosls representalives
of overseas countries. The committee |s chaired by First
Vice President Ms Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Political and Economic Affairs

Standing Committee

The Pdlitical and Economic Affairs Standing Committee
studies public and economic policies and then puts forward
suggestions lo the governmenl in respecl of industry
development. The commitiee liaises regularly with political
parties and other relaled associations to exchange
opinions about local policies and the economy. The
commitiee is chaired by Legislalive Council Representative
cum Second Vice President Mr the Hon Ng Wing Ka,
Jimmy.

Business Services Development
Standing Committee

The Business Services Development Standing Committee
develops and directs the sirategies and paolicies for CMA'S
business services. The commillee provides a diverse range
of business services which consliiute a steady income
stream for CMA, such as Cerlificates of Origin, business
insurance and company secretaral service. The committee
is chaired by Vice Presidenl Dr Ng Wang Pun, Dennis.
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Trade and Industry Standing Committee

The Trade and Industry Standing Committee aims to promote
local industrial development, foster bilateral trading relations
batween Hong Kang and different regions, collects opinions
about induslrial policies, advises the govemment on relevant
issues and helps members resolve business problems. The
commitlee is chaired by Vice Presidenl Mr Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny,

Education Standing Committee

The Education Standing Committee focuses on local
educalional development, especially on industrial training.
The commitlee promotes all round development of lwo
secendary schools operaled by CMA {CMA Secondary

‘School and CMA Choi Cheung Kok Secondary School), and

gives every possible support to their activities and
development plans, [t also reviews the donalion requests
on education and then makes recommendations to lhe
General Committes. The commitlee is chaired by Executive
Committee member Mr Lo Yuk Lam.

Manpower Standing Committee

The Manpower Standing Committee considers local
manpower development and gives advice to the
government to enhance the competitiveness of manpower
resources lo support Hong Kong's long-term development.
The commiltee also reviews and discusses the consultation
papers on human resources policies and issues, and
represents the industry to give feedback to the government.
The committee is chaired by Executive Commitiee member
Dr Lau Kin Wah, Kevin.
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Public Relations Standing Committee

By hosting various publicity activities and maintaining
good communication with the media and stakehalders,
the Public Relations Standing Committee aims to raise
public awareness about CMA and its contribution to the
society. The commitiee also oversees the production of
CMA's publicalion "Hong Kong Entrepreneurs". The
committee is chaired by Vice President Mr Mg Ching Wun.

Small and Medium Enterprises

Standing Committee

The Small and Medium Enterprises Standing Commitiee
assists local SMEs in solving operational problems and to
suppert their development through various aclivities, such
as seminars, surveys and visits. The commitiee is chaired
by Vice President Dr Ng Wang Pun, Dennis.

Sustainable Development Committee

The Sustainable Development Committee considers and
studies local policies and issues pertaining to the sustainability
of economic, social and environmental development. The
committee also proposes o the government with policies
and measures related to environmeental protection. The commitiegis
chaired by General Committee member Dr Chai Ngai Chiu,
Sunny.

Innovation and Technology Committee

The Innovation and Technology Committee studies and
promates the development of advanced manulaciuring
technologies and high value-added industry. It also exposes
members to the latest lechnologies and encourages smarl
production. The committes liaises closely with the academics,
the govemment and the public in this endsavour. The
commitiee is chaired by Execulive Committee member Dr
Chan Kwok Man, Edward.
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Greater China Friendship Committee

The Greater China Friendship Committee aims to promote
cross-strait cooperation and social exchanges through
organising or participating in cultural, arts, sports and trade
evenls. The committee |s chaired by General Committee
member Dr Lo Tal Chin.

Mainland Hong Kong Economy and
Trade Committee

The Manland Hong Kong Economy and Trade Committee
studies the economic and trade issues of Hong Kong and
Mainland China. It builds and manages the business
information archive for members. On a regular basis, the
commiliee organises business visils o Mainland cilies [o
explore business opporlunities. The commitles is chaired by
Executive Committee member Dr Wong Chun,

Industrial Committees

There are 42 |Indusirial Committees under CMA, which are
respansible for giving up-to-date information of the
respeclive industres o the General Commiltee. The industrial
composition of Hong Kong's economy has undergone &
rapid structural change over the past decades. In view of
this, the number of Industrial Commitiee has been growing.
The new additions represent up-and-coming industries and
enable CMA to represent the voice of more businesses.

Ladies' Committee

The Ladies' Commillee shares the same vision as CMA in
prometing Hong Kong's economic development. It encourages
women 1o actively perticipate in trade and social issues. In
addition to maintaining a close relationship with cross-strait
women's organisations, the committes is also active in various
community services, and has been playing 8 key role in
planning and execuling CMA's chanty evenls. The commitlee is
chaired by Mrs Candy Chan.
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Youth Committee

The Youth Cormmittee focuses its work on youth development,
It inspires the younger generations through organising contests,
summits and visits. The commitiee also encourages young
people to care aboul thelr community and aclively take part in
social affairs. The committee is chaired by Ms Candy Ngan.
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Secretariat
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Number of staff

105

G
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2015
To cope with the increased workload and o supporl
operations In exhibitions, community services and
projects, the number of staff of the Secretariat 1 1 1

increased from 108 in 201510 111 in 2016. Led by

the Chief Execulive Officer, the Secretarial is respansible
for CMA's daily operation and execution of decisions
made by the General Committee. The Secretarat has
been instrumental to realising CMA's vision and goals.
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Mainland Offices
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CMA operates 3 offices in Guangzhou and Dongguan to provide support to CMA's projects and members
in the Mainland. They serve as a bridge between Hong Kang businesses and Mainland authorities and
associalions. They alsa gather and release news aboul the latest developments and new policies in the

Mainland, and regularly report to the Mainland China Affairs Standing Committee on the challenges
facing the Hong Kong enterprises in the Mainland.
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Diverse Range of Services
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Testing and Certification Services
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Annual General Meeting ;
TmEMR2016FOH0AR T TEEER Chaired by President Dr Eddy Li, the Annual General Meeting
AE BHERESRTH -ELHRWET was held on 28 September 2016. Al the meseting, the annual
201552016 EFE B EH - ¥R report 2015-2016 was presented; the financial account for 2015 R EEndnEYeE
BT 2015 A EE RGBS RER and resolution about re-appointing auditor were also passed. % ﬁ H Hi; ﬁg E;‘] ' + CMA St
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Retirement Protection
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Retiremen! prolection has already been under discussion by
the Hong Kong Government for years, At the end of 2015, a
half-year consultation on such policy was launched for public
engagement and attracted heated discussions. CMA
expressed opinions an behalf of the business sector via various
channels, expressing oppasition to the concept of "regardiess
of rich and peor” and favouring the largeled approach. CWMA
suggested that the Government should conduct further studies
on cerain details such as asset and income limits, amount of
assistance paysble and the proposed inttial age of the
beneficiary for a comprehensive yet sustainable system. In May
2018, CMA held a joint forum with majer chambers of
commerce and invited government officials o listen to the
views of business sector,

Establishing a retirement proiection system will affect the
overall financial stability and long-term competitiveness of
Hong Kong, we must consider and examing the issue in a
holistic and careful manner before deciding an the way
forward. We should also find ways to enhance the function of
current MPF system to provide sufficient retirement protection
whilst keeping the current MPF offsetling arrangement intacL
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Hong Kong business community organised a forum
on Retirement Prolection

BREAEESTHERE Advocacy Efforts and
Promotion of the Industrial and Commercial Development
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Labour Policies
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MPF Offsetting Arrangement
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CMA has repeatedly voiced its strong oppositicn against the
abolition of MPF offsetting arrangement to the Government and
is of the view that such abolition is in direct contraction 1o the
original intention of the MPF systern when it was first setup. 1t
will also definitely impose a heavy financial burden on
businesses, especiglly SMEs. Together with the other
chambers, CMA had explored different proposals regarding
the MPF offsetting mechanism, but the discussions between
the labour and business sectars remain in deadlock,

Since itis an issue that will affect the operation of the business
sector and the overall economic development, all parties must
handle with extreme caution. CMA will continue to work with the
Government and all stakeholders to arrive al a proposal that is
gecceplable (o all and in the best interesis of the community,
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Working Hour Policy
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Slandard working hours is a highly controversial issue. Our
representative serving on the Labour Advisory Board and
Standard Working Hours Committee Mr lrons Sze has

endeavoured to reflect the concerns of the business sector.

During April and July 20186, the Standard Working Hours
Commites conducted a second-stage consullation on the direclion
of the working hour palicy. After discussion, our Manpower Standing
Committee and Political and Economic Affairs Standing
Committee refterated our stand in the submissions ageinst
the "across-the-board” legislative approach and believed that
the employment terms should be determined by the market,

In 2016, the Government conducted the third-round consultation
on the: minimum wage review. Our Human Resources Commilies
met with the Minimum Wage Commission and submitted ils
views an 20 June 2016,

BREAEEETHEE Advocacy Efforts and
Promotion of the Industrial and Commercial Development
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Re-industrialisation
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In the 2016 Policy Address, the Government proposed the
concept of "re-industrialisation” with an aim to give new
impetus 1o the local industry. CMA welcomed such a strategy
and made recommendations in respect of providing support
in terms of capital, land, technology, talent and tax concessions
to attract manufacturers relocating their operations back to
Hong Kong; establishing a dedicated department or steering
committes to examine the role of the industry in local ecanomic
structure and social davelopment, and lo facilitate the long-term
comprehensive planning of industrial development.

CMA proposed to adopt a dual approach when implementing
‘re-industrialisation® — aside from boosting local high
value-added induslries and lechnological develepment, the
Government should also promole  transformation  and
upgrading of manufacturing activities in the Pearl River Delta
region. We are of the view that such cross-border enterprises,
with headquarters based in Hong Kong, have made a
significant contribution to our local pillar industries, namely
financial, rading, ransporiation and services sectars, which are
the major components of Hong Kong's economy. They are also
a manifestation of the close economic interaction betwesen
Guangdong and Hong Kong. Il is hoped that the HKSAR
Government will make good use of all G2G platforms to
improve the business environment of the Pearl River Delta and
establish a long-term mechanism to facilitate the transformation
and upgrading of Hong Kong enterprises operating in the

region.

CMA welcomes the establishment of the Committes on Innovalion,
Technology and Re-indusirialisation. We will cooperate with the
Committee and the industry to pul forward appropriate

AN

strategies to achieve re-industrialisation,
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Support for Hong Kong Enterprises

Operating in the PRD
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For decades, Hong Kong-owned processing trade enterprises
in mainland China strive for excellence through enhancing their
compelitiveness. Thanks lo the contribution of the clusters of
processing trade faclones, the entire delia region has evolved
into an advanced manufacturing ecosystem wilh a strong
supply chain, providing components for countless industrss.
However, in recent years, these enterprises face Keen
competition from around the world and are under tremendous
compelitive pressure.

Hong Kong-owned processing enterprises have playad an
active role in promating the economic development of China.
This industry has helped China transform into a manufaciuring
platform that meets the requirements of the international
market, and laid a solid foundation for furthering upgrading
China's industrial structure. The mainland autheritiss should
provide these enterprises wilh appropriate supporl.

We are of the opinian that the Mainland govemment should
provide guidance and motivation o those enterprises in
compstitiveness enhancement, including abandaing the bonded
policy on the import of steel under processing trade, and
removing other barmiers to innovation and development of the
processing trade.

For this reason, CMA has aclively expressed opinions on behalf
of the industry to relevant govermmental departments in
Guangdong and Hong Kong and also filed submissions to
the relevant state ministries. A questionnaire survey was also
conducted together with the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and the Hong Kong Metals Manufaciurers
Association o gauge the views of the faclory operators, CMA
also wrote to vanous authorties and departments such as the
Hang Kong & Macao Affairs Office, the Ministry of Finance,
the Ministry of Commerce, Governor ol People's Government of
Guangdong Province, Commereial Office under Department of
Economic Affairs of Liaison Office of the Central People' s
Government {LOCPG) in the HKSAR, China Iron and Stesl
Association, Hong Kong Ecohomic and Trade Office in
Guangdong (GOETQ) of the HKSAR. |n addition, CMA seized
lhe opporiunities 1o express views on occasions like "Joint
Conference of Upgrade and Transformation of Hong Kaong
Enterprise in Dongguan® and seminars held by LOCPG,

BRERRETH TR Advocacy Efforts and
Promotion of the Industrial and Commercial Development
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In response to the Labour Contract Law of the PRC, CMA
sel up a task force in 2016 and engaged a |legal advisor
to study the issue. Moreover, CMA made suggestions and
proposals at the 4th meeting of the 12th National People's
Caongress through our representatives who are members of
Standing Committee of National People's Congress and National
Commitiee of the Chinese People's Folilical Consutiative
Conference.
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One Belt, One Road
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"‘One Beit, One Road" is our couniry's most significant
development stralegy, CMA organised a number of seminars
and forums for industrial stakeholders o share views, A
seminar "introduction of' One Bell, One Road" Policy and Risk
Prevention" was held by "Hang Kong - Mainland Joint Business
Liaison Committee” on 26 October 2018, with an aim to analyse
the potential risks and cormesponding measures when investing
in the countries along the Belt and Road, On 16 December
2016, CMA's Smart City Industrial Committee, In collaboration
with  Lingnan University and Hong Kong Public Key
Infrastruclure Forum Limited (HKPKIF) held a seminar an topic
of "One Bell, One Read: Opportunities and Challenges”.
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ian Mr Eddie Na met with the Deputy M r of Highar Education of

Malaysia in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia to ha Hang Kong Scholarship for "Belt and Road” Studants |
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CMA also took the lead in supporting the Hong Kong
Scholarship for "Belt and Road” Students and pledged to
spansor the living expenses of the students coming from the
first 5 paricipating countries with HK32 million for each
country, totaling HK$10 million, with the purpose of prometing
bonding with these countries. Indonesia was the first
spansored country and the programme was successfully
launched in 2016/17 academic year. Up to 10 scholarship
awards will be made available for Indonesian students who
pursue full-time Bachelor study in Hong Kong. Malaysia will be
the second participating country, Apart from a bursary of
HKE50,000 per student per annum provided by CMA, CWA
President Dr Eddy LI will in addition donate HKS4.8 million
personally to sponsor their luilion fees. It is expecied that the
beneficiaries will become a linking bridge between Hong Kong
and their homeland in prometing economic cooperation.
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The Mainland Government has exerted great efforts in
promoling "Internet+” while the HKSAR has also been
aclively developing Hong Kong into a smart city. To
reinforce the Industry's awareness and knowledge of the
internet economy, CMA drew up a number of rasearch
reports with z2n aim to analyse the development trends and
potential opportunities of big dala, online marketing,
augmented reality (AR), virual reality (VR) and artificial
intelligence (Al).

CMA launched the "Online HKBPE" in 2016, A pre-launch
seminar was held 1o allow potentigl beneficiaries o0 understand
the latest trends of cross-border e-commerce. Experts and
enterprises were invited to share their strategies and
successful sfories with participants. (For details of "Online
HKBPE", please refer to "Exhibition Services" section of this
annual report.)
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In May 2018, CMA's Innovation and Technology Commitiee jointhy
held an exchange activity themed "IndustryConnecti@Science
Park: CMA InnoExpress" with the Hong Kong Science &
Technology Parks Corporation (HKSTP). This initiative aimed
lo increase technology commercialisation oppartunities and
to widen business oulreach among lhe local industries,
During the activity, experts from HKSTP partner companies
introduced their latest technology applications.

On 7 July 2018, our Smart City Industrial Committee organised
an "Innovative Progress in PKI and Authenticalion International
Symposium® in which regional experts shared their insights
and experience in promoting smart city development. The
commillee also organised a press launch on 26 August
to explore the development potential of e-Cert in helping
Hong Kong entrepreneurs tap on the huge cross-border
e-commerce opportunity.
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Exchange Activity "IndustryConneci@Scikence Fark:
CiA InnoExpress”
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During the past vear, the CMA has organised a total of nearly
40 training courses, workshops and seminars, on topics like the
latest tax standards, management, marketing and branding
strategies, human resources management, and e-commerce.
10 large-scale seminars and luncheons were held {o help the
industry enhance business skills and management effectivencss,
and keep up with the latest market trends.

Hong Kong Brand Development Council, CMA, the Trade
and Industry Depariment of the HKSAR and Hong Kong Trade
Development Council jointly held the "Branding To Win Seminar.
Turning Adversity into Opportunity” an 30 September at the
Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre with nearly 300
paricipants, Guest speakers explored the business and
branding sirategies in the current sluggish economic
situation from different angles and shared their success stories,

CMA also conducted a number of information talks and seminars
lo help our members master the latest policies and market
Irends, with topics such as "The Measures o Levy Value-Added Tax
instead of Business Tax', "Agreement on Trade in Services" under
CEPRA, "SME Financing Guarantee Scheme’, the impact of the
withdrawal of the Uniled Kingdom from the European Union,
competition law, and stemn cell research and development, elc.

*Branding To Win Seminar. Turning Adversity info

Dpporiunity”

on compet

BIRERRETH THERE Advocacy Efforts and
Promotion of the Industrial and Commercial Development
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CMA has been the organiser of the "Equipment and Machinery
Design" category under "Hong Kang Awards for Industries” for
many years. The compettion ams at enhancing the
competitiveness of products in the market and honouring the
outstanding companies. 2016 Hong Kong Awards for
Industries was successfully held on 13 December 2016 at
Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre. A total of 30
eniries were received in the "Equipment and Maehinery
Design" category, and finally 1 Grand Award, 8 Awards and 8
Certificates of Merit were presented.
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CMA Prasident Dr Eddy Li presented awards 1o the winners in
*Equipment and Machinery Design® category at the awards
presertation ceremony of "20M6 Hong Kong Awards for
Indusirias’

B L RS OSSR e e A ot
The Horg Kong Research institute of Texliles and Apparel Fabric Touch Tester won the
Hong Kaong Awards for Industries: Equipment and Machinery Deslgn Grand Award
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Suggestions on 2017 Policy Address and 2017-18 Budget
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Our members are the comerstone of the association. To make membership with CMA a
professionally-rewarding experience, we are keen on providing the best support and professional
services 1o our members from different industries. Aparl from business exchanges, CMA has
omanised many lelsure and networking activities for members during the past year, in the hope that
they could enjoy a balanced life and creale business synergies with fellow members.

= iRTE 2321 Member Services and Support
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The Members
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In 2018, we recorded a steady growth in members. With
the addition of 471 corporate members, total membership

soared to 3,024. The "Member Referral Programme"
‘contributed enarmously to this growth — about 90% of

N

TRERSH
Years of Membership

11-204F years 1-10% years

22% 58%

TREAEEEASH
Locations of Factories in Mainland

new members were referred by General Commiltee Other

Members, which was four times of last year's figure,

Qur members come from a diverse range of industries,
The fop B industries in 2016 were food and beverage
products, apparel and accessaries, trading services,
textiles and finishing. electronics and optical products,
and metal products; about 40% of total membership was
from the above industries.

With the addition of new Industrial Committees, more

members from emerging industries have joined CMA.
The new industries include biotechnology, smart city,
animation, comics and electronic gamas, pet
services, etc. Not only did they add dynamics lo

CMA's development, they also brought in new
voices from more industries, and thus enhance the

representativeness of CMA.

Guangdong

3.3% 2.5% 2.4% 2%

4
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In 2016, 40 member activities were held by CMA, including the regular B "w@.-‘ FA
"CMA Bar Time", "CMA Movie Night", expositions, comporate visits, business member activities
were held during the yoar

missions and seminars, stc.
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CMA Bar Time

Networking Activities

During the past year we have engaged members in an
extensive range of chamber-sponsored activities, New
members were nvited 1o the monthly General Commitlee
Dinner Reception for networking with experienced members.
"CMA Bar Time" provided an alternative platform and a relaxad
environment for new and experienced members to mingle and
exchange ideas while enjoying an afterwark drink, entertainrment
and snacks. Many members found the happy hours rewarding.
In addition, we got to learn memibers' needs and their views
towards CMA's development via meetings batween members
and CMA leaders,

The "Industrial Dinner Reception”, & flagship membership event of
CMA, was successfully held on 17 November 2016. Owver 300
members from different industries were prasent 2t the dinner.
We were honored to have Mr Yung Wail Hung, Permanent
Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development
(Commerce, Industry and Tourism), to be our Guest of Honor.
Performance by the winners of "Voice of CMA 2016" became
the highlight of the night. This event gathered elites from
different industries and allowed potential members to leam
more about CMA,

In "CMA Movie Night 2016", over 400 members and thelr family
members walched "Batman v Superman: Dawn of Justice",
"Slar Trek Beyond” and "Inferno” together. Other aclivities such
as "CMA Car Show" and "Seafood Hotpot Gathering” were well
recelved, with a total attendance of over 150 members.
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Information Dissemination

To provide members wilh information about whal is going on in
the industry and the CMA. 7 visits to other organisations were
hosted in 2016, including visits to CMA Testing & Certification
Laboratones, Cathay Pacific Airways, MTR Comporation Limited,
Authentic Chinese  Food  and  Leflovers  Management
Technigue, Hong Kong Productivity Council, Hong Kong Office
of Google, elc.

Furthermars, 4 seminars on topical issues were organised and
gach altended by about 100 members. Topics included "MPF
and Retirement Protection Systemns”, "Corporate Law, Risk
Management and Competition Law”’, "'The Impact of Brexit on
International and Hong Kong Economy” and "SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme”.
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Visit to Cathay Pacific Arways
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Business Support

CMA provided our members with exhibitions and promaotional
platforms with low entry barrier. On 23 and 24 January 2016, the
CMA Membership Division and Fur Processing & Accessories
Industrizl Committes jointly presented a fur fashion exhibition at
the CMA Building. Owing to space limitation, the venue could
only accommedate aboul 10 exhibitors; however, with attraciive
prices and high guality products, over 300 visitors attended the
exhibition in 2 days.

CMA set up a Mini-Outlet from 1910 23 May 2016 at Lei Yu Mun
Plaza. There were 15 booths selling home appliances, healthy
food, snacks, sauces, personal care products, etc. To enhance
the overall event experience, we arranged balloon art lessons
and magic shows for parents and children lo enjoy together.

For memibbers to understand the support that CMA was offering,
CMA organised an informaticn day on 2 November 2016 to
introduce member privieges and CMA's services. Apart from
setting up information booths at the activity, representatives
from Hong Kong Productivity Council were invited to talk 1o our
members aboul BUD Fund (Organisation Support
Programme).

Since the formation of the Professional Advisory Team in 2008,
45 professional organisations have joined, giving free support
to our members on matters related to law, accounting, insurance,
finance, operations, etc.

o R
Fur Fashion Retail Sale

Hong Kong g—
Entrepreneurs
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Member Privileges ‘

To show our appreciation to members, CMA has continued to
identify vanous shopping discounts and good service offers for
them, The offers were listed in "Mamber Privilege Scheme”. In
2016, the list included over G0 items covering many aspects
such as fashion, restaurants, entertainment and business
services.

The "CMA Monthly Bulletin" was launched by the membership
division in 2008. Through the Bulletin, members receive
updates about member acliviies ana enjoy featured
articles on different topics, from lifestyle and leisure, 1o
business and community. With the enhanced content, the
Bulletin has lengthened from 12 pages to 16 pages since
June 2016. In addition, a new "Member Updaies" column
has been introduced to introduce the businesses of
members,

To keep our members informed about the latest markat
trends, CMA Paolicy Research Division regularly compiles
the "Trade and Economic Bulletin® to provide succinct
review on the latest economic issues, as well as updates on
palicy developments in Hong Keng, the Mainland and
overseas. It also includes topical analylical reperls on
selected economic and policy issues. It is circulated to
members fortnightly for internal reference.

CMA's publication "Hong Kong Entrepreneurs’ provides
members and industry with detailed Insights into topical
industry and market trends. Il also contains analysis on new
policies that concemn the industry, technological development
and new business trends,

wAA®

—® cMA Monthly Bulletin
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Thi 1970s Was the golden age of Hong Kong's
manufacturing industry. The city'ssindustries
employed more than 1 million people and
‘accounted for around 30% of GDP.
Labour-intensive: production by simple
mechanical assistance contributed lo the
high volume of exports of electronic products
and watches all ovar the world.
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Fostering Stakeholder Relationships
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CMA believes that "in union there is strength". Through liaison activities and ongoing
interactions, we strengthen connections with the industry, the government, local and
overseas businesses, the media and the public. We aim to link different parties and create
conditions conducive to a harmonious society and continued prosperity.
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The Government
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To provide members with the latest information about the
govemment's trade and industrial policies, CMA stays in touch
with various government autharities.

CMA has nominated representatives o serve on boards and
committees of many government and stalutory authornities (please
refer iothe "Appendices” for the list of representatives). During the
year, wa invited heads of govemment deparments 1o be
officiating guests of our major events. At the monthly meetings
and dinner receptions of the General Committee, government
officials and representatives of public bodies were invited to
attend and deliver a featured speech about the latest policy
development and issues of concem.

Speeches at General Committee Dinner Receptions in 2016
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Central Government Offices in Hong Kong
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CMA has maintained a close relationship with the Central
Government Offices in Hong Kang. On 18 July 2016, General
Committee Members conducted the annual visit to the Office of
the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the PRC in the HKSAR, and
reported the latest development of CMA to the then
Commissioner Song Zhe. On 26 October 2018, the General
Committee hosted a dinner reception in honour of MrYang Yi,
lhe then depuly Director General of the Economic Affairs
Department, Liaison Office of the Central People's Government in
the HKSAR (LOTPG).

Besides, representatives of LOCPG, Office of the PRC Ministry
of Foreign Affairs and People's Liberstion Ammy Hong Kong
Garrison were invited lo attend a number of cur major events
and be the advisor for our mission trips.
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N —@® CMA General Commiltes Members met with the then Commissioner of the

Ministry of Fereign Alffairs of the PRC in the HKSAR Sang Zhe
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Political Parties

CMA seeks to foster cordial and cooperative relations with
differenl polilical parlies. In lhe past year, wa supported many
of their philanthropic initiatives and mejor events, such as
fund raising activilies, annual dinners, inauguration ceremonies,
and social initiatives. During the year, the Political and
Economic Affairs Standing Committee held several luncheons
with leaders of palitical parlies, where both sides exchanged
opinions aboul Hong Kong's economy and government
policies. Although we might have opposing views on certain
topics, we try to find a commaon ground through continuous
communication,

HEERenTREE
Membars of political party visitod HKBPE

Industrial and Commercial Sector

After 2 break last year, "CMA Sports Invilational Tournament®
resumed in 20716, The game was organised by the Political
and Economic Affairs Standing Committee and widely
supported by our counterparts in the business seclor, Over
360 contestants from 18 organisations, including CMA,
participated in the games of soccer sevens, lennis,
badminton, table tennis, and squash. CMA won at squash,
men's tennis (senior division group) and women's tennis.

EEE IR
CMA Sports Invitatlonal Tournament 2016
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"The Voice of CMA”" had been well received since its launch
in 2013. In 2016, CMA scaled up this event and extended
Invitations to music lovers from fellow chambers of
commerce. \We received around 60 entries and the finalists
competed on 14 Seplember at Youth Sguare. We were
honored to have renowned musician Michael Lai, Music
Director of Emperor Entertainment Group Chan Wing Ming,
singer Alan Po and leaders of chambers io be the judges.

DEh DM EFEFEAAL

Singer Alan Po wes a member of judging
panal for "The Yoice of CMA 2016"

EE g RS REE
Winners of "The Voice of CMA 2016
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BEF BEEEERS AT M In 2016, CMA supported and was involved in a number of joint

B G aE i ek IF IR AT AR A AT SR e AR activities, aiming to strengthen our ties with other organisations.
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2016 CERA (RFES
GEPA Farum: Gﬁmm Trade in Services
2/’ fTAl-"Er.E. 'g.i.-ru ; ) : .
1 Jont Business Community Luncheon 'with The Chisf Executive of lhe HESAR
ﬁ’ﬁi’]m
Joint Busniess Community Luncheon wath The Financial Secretany of the HKSAR
18 ARSI BRI B S E R R e [20169 B e e
/ “Chira Investment Policy Seminar 2016° organised by Minlstry of Commarce of tha
Peoplies Repubic of China and Hong Kong Trade Developmeant Counal
KMMHE#H ﬁﬁﬁlﬁfﬁ\?ﬂﬁ
Development Public Engagement Focus Group Mesting
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4 Ren Zne Metalic Sculptures Exhibition
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Luncheon with 4 major chamibers of commarce hosted by MPEA

P
CLicren hsin by B 7

9- 17 BENEHRSEIRETR _
6 Calebration of Cathay Pacfic sl Flight to Madrid, Spain

mmﬁﬁmmm
REDA 50th anniversary Cockiall Reception

Gﬁ/ EERARESES S TmN
b 4 Srmart the and Mobite Applications Sharing Seminar

!H&W R
mﬁimmcm ‘of Commernce and mﬂs hostad fy CA

25 %rx’* ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁuﬁmﬁﬂiﬁL?ﬁﬁﬂ
/ Luncheon with The Lisison Offica of the Ceniral People’s Gevermment and. malor
r rhamhem of commerce hmaed by Hong Kong Fmeramn of Indusines

0/2/ oGS E T LY 8| Mg
11 HEYIC Award 2018 presentalion Ceremary

m S B 2016
ﬁg‘ E% R@HM&?’E%&B

9{ L E = e
11 |Inauguration Ceremony of 6th Executive Commities, CEQ Club
m%mwma — | _
Luncheon with The Lizison Offce of the Central Peopie’s Govamment and § major
skl S Peopie's ¢ int and § major

ey g (oo Eslinnnee |
Inauguration Caremany of 50th General Committes, CGCC
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Mainland and Overseas Political and Business Bodies

20167 « HiF SR M 10E=8E - [l In 2016, CMA organised 10 autgoing missions and hosted 100
B THR100ERERE fﬁﬁiﬁl?ﬂlm% visiting parties, to enhance exchange of information and
& T Rt b B0 A R B 4R A& promotion of trade relations.
BTHEHWNSEFBEEANT SHE

b B S S -

t & Y
Outgoing Missions
[ P i Mainland China

=8 (dtH 28 | 2HmA#E E2F Dalian, known as the Pearl of North, is one of the crucial hubs ‘
EEMESEBMBERLZ— - for trade and commercial activities in China. To support

BHEER2016F 8252288 & 2016 Hong Kong Trendy Products Expo, Dalian”, CMA led 2
[2016F BRI ERBERE - X&E delegation to Dalian from 25 to 28 August 2016. The delegation
TR ST » EEATLEEEE - met with leaders of Liaoning and Dalian, including Vice
REBERARTEBERAENZM Governor of Liaoning Province Bing Zhigang, Chief of City of
FE8 OEFEHEAEHNEER Dalian Xiao Shengfeng, Officer of Exlernal Affairs (Overseas)

A ARETARBRTRESE - of Liaoning Province Sun Dagang and Deputy Chief of
EEEINE (B WEELE fﬁ)\‘ﬁlll City of Dalian Lu Lin, and exchanged views about business
ERBETARBFETEEM-£H conperation and cultural exchange between Hong Keng and
HEBRESEEMREXERR ﬁ:?j‘ﬁ Liaoning.

Bk -

E.hu‘?%e AARBFES ﬁﬁmi Ml (BN gm
Members of CMA met with Vice-Governor of Liaoning Province Bing Zhigang (8th from right)
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Anather delegation visited Ganzhou City in Jlangxi Province
from 11 to 14 November 2018. The members had a fruitful
meeting with Depuly Mayor of Ganzhou Wu Juwen and
Director of Bureau of Commerce Xiao Zuoxin, participated ina
seminar of Zhanggong District and Dingnan County, and
signed a framework agreement on cooperation. The delegation
also visited Ganzhou Comprehensive Bonded Zone and
several local companies.

Taiwan

A group of 22 representing CMA visited Taiwan from 20 1o 24
January 2016. Apart from attending the Opening Ceremony of
*2016 Talwan New Year Market Fair, Hong Kong Pavilion®,

the delegation had met with Chairman of Taiwan
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Director of Hong

Kong Ecanomic, Trade and Cultural Office, Director
General of Deparment of Hong Kong and Macao
Affalrs, Mainland Affaire Council, Vice Chairman of
Taiwan Chamber of Commerce & Industry, and Director

of Taipei International Exhibition Center. During the trip,

the delegation had also visited TCI Co., Lid.

Macau

A delegation of 47 members visited Macau from 24 to 25
March 2016,

The delegation attended the Opening Ceremony of "2016
Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo, Macau” and mel with
Philp Yung, Pemnanent Secretary for Commerce and
Economic Develapment Bursau, the HKSAR Government,
Maria Helena de Senna Fermandes, Director of the Macau
Government Tourist Office and lrene Va Kuan Lau, Executive
Director of Macau Trade and Investment Promotion Institute. To
further facilitate the trade & economic cooperation between
Hong Kong and Macau, the CMA hosled a networking
luncheon lo receive the representatives of Macao Chamber
of Commerce and Macao Trade and Investment
Promotion |Institute.

Bi4% & 57 Fostering Stakeholder Relationships
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CMA Trade Mission to Ceniral Asia

Overseas

To explore the business potential in the countries along the
"Belt and Road', a delegation of 50 visited Kazakhstan,
Uzbekistan and Kyrgyzstan from 29 April to 6 May 2016.
During the trip, members visited a number of lncal trade and
commerce depariments, as well as their special economic
Zzones and industrial eslablishments, with an aim to oblain
first-hand informaticn about the economic development,
industrial policies and investment market, and to build
posilive lies with local governmenls and businesses.

CMA also signed a memorandum of understanding with
Almaty Chamber of Entreprensurs of Kazakhsian and
Investment Promotion Agency Under The Minisiry of
Economy of The Kyrgyz Republic respectively, selting a
solid foundaltion for fulure business cooperation.
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Incoming Trade Missions and Visits

Last year, CMA received over 100 incoming missions from
Mainland China and overseas. CMA and the visiting parties
exchanged Iinformation about their respective business
environment and local development.

BB BERAEE R R

Some of the Incoming Trade Missions and Visits

BEDate  i&{t%E Leader of delegation

11 PR R BRI £ - PR TR H R T
// Ms Ferg Yueis, Vice-chairman of Shaanxi Committee of CPPCC cum Chaimman of
1 Shaari Federaion of Industry and Commerce

Ery BEETSR=F
Eﬁmﬁ “ﬁmammff%bmrrmd Hmrgakang. Macan, Taiwan and

&mChunmkﬁam CPPCC National Comim
1/1/ L AR
5 Mr Qiang Wei, Secretary of Jiang< Provincial CCPC
$§Hﬂn¢§{r§ &imﬂﬂﬁﬁf
Vice Ciairman of Central Commiziee of China Zhi Gong Party
17/ Eiie AR E R
5 Mr Lu Yongzheng, Vice Governor of the Feopie's Govemment of Gul Zhou Province

EME AR Eﬂ‘#ﬁﬁ]ﬁ'ﬁ BllE ERRIRAR S
% ’W&m Chaimman of m@m&fmmmmmammmmmm

Mr Sun Shaocheng, Member of the Standing Cammittes of the CPC Sharxl Provincial Commitiee

9/ IUHEEEE - ESTREEESE
6 LM Mlnistﬂrcf Linited Frant Work Degartrnent of the CPC Shanwi Provincial Committos

Mr Ll Yong, m%ﬁﬂiaioﬂnwmmmﬁgm aof Ministry of
Commerce ol Dﬁqu i
10 EHHAREEREL - SRTESSHRER
Mr Li Loneed, Vies Chaimman of the Standing Commitize of
8 e CPC Jilin Provinaial Commume

FEMEE e ﬁﬁm Ms laohel GCONNDR
Ms isobel O MUR. Consuk-Gerieral
Ireiind in Hoog Kong
12 xﬁ?‘??‘llggmmmﬂI;E
Wr Chen Wu, Governar of (he Peopig's Government of
10 G-Jﬂﬂq}u Zhuanq Autonomots Reoion

ni Consulate General of

MrJ awamg ménmwumégﬁﬁﬁwmnmmm
C Commitige of Jiin Province

17 "I“-miﬂ}mﬂ’ti.fiﬂﬂﬁéﬁﬁll“:&
11 Wir Jiang Zuajun, Cenfral Bxecutive Vies Chairman of China Zhi Gong Party

%ﬁmmd%ﬁ%mmm of the-Siate Coundil
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CMA is dedicated to maintaining good communication
with the media, to ensure that our activities and opinions
were widely covered and accurately reported. On the
ather hand, CMA welcomes feedback from the media in all
aspects of our wark.

Last year, CMA organised several press conferences,
media luncheons and other media events. In addition,
CMA reached out to leaders of a number of media
organisations, and invited them to private luncheons or
General Committee Dinner receplions.

To facilitale effective communication between CMA leaders
and the media, the Public Relations Standing Committes
organised a featured seminar an 19 May 2016, with experienced
journalist Ng Chi Sum sharing his views about the media
environment and crisis management technigues.

EREETE
Annual Media Luncheon
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2016 Hong Kong Top Brand Awards
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The "Hong Keng Top Brand Awards" recognise outstanding
brands established by Hong Kong manufacturers, with the
objective to promote Hong Kong products and enhancing the
profile of Hong Kong industry. The Award has a history of
18 years since its launch in 1999,

The preliminary screening and final judging were held on
16 November 2016 and 4 January 2017 respectively. A public
palling was conducted during the "51st Hong Kong Brands
and Products Expo”

Qut of 20 finalists, 14 outstanding brands were selected as
winners of "Hong Kong Top Brand Awards".

Since 2008, BDC has recognised Hong Kang brands which
have maintained a continuosly outstanding performance
with "Hong Kong Top Brand Ten Year Achievement Award",
"Hung Fook Tong', "Royal Medic", "Safewell" and "SINOMAX®
were the awardees of 2016.

Members of the Final Judging Panel included Ms Salina Yan,
Director-General of Trade and Industry of the HKSAR
(Chairman of Judging Panel), Dr Eddy Li, President of the
CMA, Prof Timothy Tong, President of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Prof Daniel Cheng, Chairman of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries, Mr Willy Lin , Chairman
of the Hong Kong Productivity Coungil, Mr Ng Ching Wun,
Vice Chairman of the BDC and Mr Terry Lam, Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong Designers Associalion,

H380EERRE 380

g
Since its inception in 1999, the Brand Aw;.irq\: have honored 380 outstanding brands.
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2016 Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards
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Launched in 2005, the "Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards"
recognise outstanding service providers, aiming to set up role
modeis and best-praciice benchmarks in branding for local
service industries.

The 2016 Awards received enthusiastic response from the
Industries, attracting entries from a wide spectrum of service
sectors, including transportation, retail, food and calering, hotel,
entertainment, professional services and beauty services.
The preliminary judging was held on 16 November 2016, while
tha final selection was conducted on 3 January 2017. A public
polling was conductad during the "51st Hong Kong Brands and
Products Expo” from 10 to 31 December 2018.

13 winners of the "Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards" were
selected from among 19 finalists.

Since 2014, BDC has introduced the "Hong Kong Top Service
Brand Ten Year Achievement Award" to recognise Hong Kong
brands who have made persistent commitment to branding
and sustzined outstanding performance for years. "Neway
Karaoke Box", "Well Born" and "Welicome" won the honcurs
in 2016.

The Awards Judging Panel was comprisaed of Mr Godfrey Leung,
thethen Under Secretary for Commerce & Economic Development
of the HKSAR (Chairman of Judging Panel), Mr Simon Wong,
Chairman of the BDC, Dr Peter Lam, Chairman of Hong Kang
Tourism Board, Mr Winston Chow, Vice Chairman of
Hong Kong Retall Mansgement Association, Miss Shirley Yuen,
CEOQ of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and
Mr Raymond Yip, Deputy Executive Director of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council.
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2016 Hong Kong Emerging Brand Awards &
Hong Kong Emerging Service Brand Awards
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Ta foster a brand culture among the industries, BDC and CMA
have co-organised "Hong Kong Emerging Brand Awards" and
"Hong Kong Emerging Service Brand Awards" since 2010, The
Awards give recognition o up-and-coming brands of less than
8 years old. This is lo encourage Hong Kong companies,
especially SMEs, to embrace an entrepreneurizl spirt and to
enhance upward mability and competitiveness through brand
building.

Embarking an its 71 year, the 20168 Emerging Awards held the
preliminary screening on 16 November 2016, and the final
selection was conducted on 15 December 2016, The winners
of the two awards were selected by the same judging panel.

The Final Judging Panels far these twa awards included
Mr Philip Yung, Permanent Secretary for Commerce and
Economic Development (Commerce, Industry and Tourism) of
the HKS5AR (Chairman of Judging Panel), Prof Malthew Lee,
Vice-President (Development and External Relations), Chair
Professar of Information Systems and Electronic Commearce of
City University of Hong Kong, Mr Lam Kwok-leung, tha then
President of the Hong Kong General Chamber af Small and
Medium Business, Dr Lo Kam-wing, General Committee member
af the BDC, Ir C S Ho, Deputy Chaiman of the Hong Kang Quality
Assurance Agency and Dr Edmund Lee, Execulive Direclor of
Hong Kong Design Centre,

Among the 20 shortlisted entries for the final selection,
6 product labels and 6 service brands stood out as the new
batch of "emerging stars”,
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2016 Awards Presentation Ceremony - cum - Gala Dinner
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The Presentation Ceremony of the 2016 Hang Kong Top Brand
Awards & Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards and Hong Kong
Emerging Brand Awards & Hong Kong Emerging Service
Brand Awards-cum-Gala Dinner was held at the Convention Hall
of Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre cn 25 January
2017, Financial Secretary the Hon Paul Chan, President
of CMA Dr Eddy Li and BDC Chairman Mr Simon Wong
officiated al the ceremony. The then Secretary for Commerce
and Economic Development Hon Gregory So, Permanent
Secretary (Commerce, Industry and Tourism) Mr Philip Yung, the
then Under Secretary for Commaerce & Economic Development
Mr Godfrey Leung, and Director-General of Trade and Indusltry
Ms Salina Yan presented awards 1o the winners.

The occasion lurned out fa be an unprecedentad success
with the presenca of ahout 700 distinguished guests. Guasls wers
trealed o & performance of roller skating and Chinese orchestra.
Prior o lhe evenl, BDC also hosted a cocklal where
large-scale display boards were sst up to showcase and
celebrate the remarkable achieverments of the awardees,

THSERRANEREZE (BHTL)  EEEERTHEE (TS -AFREFEEN (Foh) -FEEmERSELRRER
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Guest of Honor Financial Secretary The Hon Paul Chan (5th from laft, 15t row), CMA Presidenl Dr Eddy Li (4th from left, 1st row),
BOC Chairman Simon Wong (Sth from nght, st row), Panel of Judges and representatives of the winning companies posed for a

group photo al the Awards Presentation Caremony.
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Financial Secretary The Hon Paul Chan was the Guest
of Honor of the Awards Presentation Ceremany

R - Fee SR Wk e
BDC Chairman Simon Wong dellvered a welcoming
apeech 8t the Awards Presentation Ceramany
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"Dalian + Hong Kong Brand Festival” Project
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In view of the huge busingss potential of the Mainland markel,
the BDC hosts the "Hong Kong Brand Festival' in different
cities to showcase Hong Kong brands and strengihen
connections with local authorities and businesses.

With the sponsorship of the Dedicated Fund on Branding,
Upgrading and Domestic Sales (Organisation Support
Programme), the BOC and CMA jointly presented "Dalian +
Hong Kong Brand Festival' Serial Aclivities, hoping to
explore business opporunities in Liaodong Peninsula and
its surrounding area for Hong Kong companies. The project
embarked in March 2016 and lasted for 13 months.
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BDC organised a business study tour to Dalian
and visited local enterprises

elopment and Pror
ira
’ T

L 1
HBEEPEL

BODC held a hest of theme activities in Dalian from 26 1o 29
August 2016, including setting up a brand experience area
of "Heng Kong Brand +"in 20186 Hong Kong Trendy Products
Expo, Dalian”, in which the landmark and cityscape of
Hong Kong were usaed in the booth desian. The area featured
a product display zone of 300 products and 5 interactive kiosks.
24 stage performances and game shows with & Hong Kong
flavour were also lined up at the expo venue. Through this
multidimensional experience, the diversity and trendy image of
Hong Kong brands were fully demonstrated.

On 26 August 2016, the BDC organised a business study tour
to Dalian. Members from 20 Hong Kong companies paid a visit
to Bang Chul Dao Food Manufacturing Company Limited and
DaShang Group. Through the activity, participants obtained the
latest information about the business environment and distribution
channels in Dalian.

Besides, a research team from The Hong Kong Polylechnic
University was commissioned by BDC to conduct interviews
with 10 local distributors in Dalian, Ganzhou, Dandang,
Shenyang, etc. They also compiled case studies of 3 Hong
Knng companies with expasura to Liaodang area to document
their reallife experience in developing domestic sales.

A concluding seminar was held in Hong Kong on 2 December
2016, in which Prof Sherriff Luk, Director of Brand Strategy and
Innavation Center of the Hong Kong Paolytechnic University
infroduced the gist of the above-mentioned research report.
BDC also invited the Director of One Belt One Road Research
Institute of Chu Hai College of Higher Education Professer,
Thomas Chan, and leaders of numerous reputable Hong Kong
companies as speakers to share their views and experience in
developing markels and brands. Nearly 80 paricipants atiended
the seminar.
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The BDC led & delegation to Liacning
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Outgoing Mission to Liaoning
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The BDC led a delegation to Liaoning Province from 25 to 28
Augusl 2018, Aparl from allending "Dalian + Hong Kang
Brand Festival" activities, the group had zls0 visited the city of
Shenyang where they met with representatives of Liaoning
Commercial Federalion to explore the polential of cooperation
between Hong Kong and Llaoning, and exchange views on
brand development stralegies. The delegation also visited
shenyang Xinglong Happy Family Shopping Mall.
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Hong Kong Top Brand Mark Scheme
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Jointly arganised by the BDC and the CMA since 2004, the
Hong Keng Top Brand Mark Scheme continuously reviews and
recegnises the sustained achievemenl in brand building of
local companies, with a well-struclured assessmenl system
and licensing procedurss, Upon completion of the due
reqistration and review process every year, companies would
be granted the licence and allowed 1o use the "Top Mark" for
business promotion.

The Scheme is exclusively for winners of the Hong Kong Top
Brand Awards or Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards, and the
continued use of the mark is allowsd subject to an annual on-site
assessment accarding to its product or service category.

Up till December 2016, the Scheme had maore than 200
licensees, covering over 800 categories of products or services.
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"Made in Hong Kong™ Mark Scheme
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Since 2006, the BDC has implemented a certification schems,
"Made in Hong Kong Mark (HK Mark) Schema", In the HK Mark
scheme, a unified wisual identty was introduced to signify
goods originated from or produced in Hong Kong. The objective
of this scheme is io enhance brand recognition of Hong Kang
products and promote the brand value of "Made in Hong Kong',
namely, high guality, high standard and good repulation.

The certification scope of the "Made in Hong Kong Mark
Scheme" covers gonds for exporls and goods for domastic
sales. For expert goods, the "HK Mark” licence is granted via
the Ceriificate of Hong Kong Origin (CHKOQ) or Certificate of
Origin-CEPA (CO(CEPA)). CMA provides certification service
for goods destined for Hong Kong's local market, and the
cerlification "Document of Hong Kong Origin — Domeslic
Sales” (DO) is also accepted as supporting documents for the
issue of "HK Mark! licence.

The Parade of Hong Kong Top Brands 2016
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The 2016 edition of "The Parade of Hong Kong Top Brands'
was published in July 2018, This 291-page bilingual bocklet
was a collection of success stories of over 100 representative
brands of Hong Kong. Itwas also the official publication to docu-
ment the history and the lales! developments of the Hong Keng
Brand Awards. The Parade has been published since 2003
and is now in its 14th edition.

With a circulation of 3,000, the booklet was distributed to
winning companies, govemnment depariments, consulaies,
schools, media, manufacturing and business associations,
Mainland and overseas Drganiéaﬁnns, aic.

The New Official Website
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BODC launched the new official website (www.hkbrand.org) at
the end of 2016, With state-of-the-art design, the website
contgins nch and detailed updates aboul the wark of the BDC.
This website will be a specialised platform upon which Heng
Kong brands can be promoted worldwide,
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Exhibition Services
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CMA Exhibition Services Limitad (CMAESL) is an independent exhibition company under
CMA, CMAESL provides all-round quality services to cater for clients’ needs in exhibition
organisation and managernent. In 20186, 7 exhibilions were successfully held n Hong Kong, China,
Taipei and Macau, including the long-running "Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo®
and the renowned "Hong Kong Food Carnival'.
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The Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo
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51st HKPBE
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The Opening Ceremony of the 51t HKBPE

0,=I,}h Generated

(] — g S
media caverage

With a history of 78 yvears, the "Hong Kong Brands and
Products Expo'{HKBPE) has been a well-received and
highly anticipated event in Hong Kong. The 51st HKBPE
was held in Victoria Park from 10 December 2018 to
2 January 2017, With the blessing of good weather and
the advent of the Chinese New Year, this year the response
from the public was very good, with the sales figure
exceeding HKE900 million for the second year in a row.

As usual, this year's HKBPE was strongly supported by
different parties. In the opening cersmony, we were
honcred tc have the then Chief Executive the Hon Leung
Chun-ying as the Gues! of Honor, and the presence of over
200 government officials, officials from the Liaison Office of
the Central People's Government in the HKSAR and
reputable business leaders.
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The contestants of Miss Exnibition Pageant
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The 5fst HKBPE successiully drew 8 huge erowd

The BB0 booths showcasing Hong Kong products with
atiraclive discounts were undoubtedly the highlight of the
Expo, but the entertainment programmes were egually
eye-catching. During the Expo, over 80 performances were
staged, including "Miss Exhibition Pageant', "2016 HKBPE
Children Ambassadors Competition”, live performance by
professional DJs.

To raise public awareness aboul HKBPE, we made use of
various mean, including TV commercials, newspaper and
magazine ads, social media, eic. We estimated that the
outdoor ads placed in Hong Kong, Guangzhou and at the
border were seen by over 12 million people every day. In
addition, we organised a press conference and preview for
media friends, as well as a guided gourmest lour for media and
food bloggers o have a premier taste of popular local street
lood and creative dishes. Their reports and recommendations
successfully made the gourmet zone a "must-go" spot.

This year, the exhibitors gave away sltractive promolion items
and discounts, like $10 per inch of TV, "§1 Rice Cooker”, etc.
The organiser gave away 110,000 prizes with total value of
HKE3.8 million at the lucky draw. These gimmicks spiced up
the Expo and attracted coverage in over 640 media arficles.

To repay the public for their support, HKBPE launched the
"Caring for the Community" programme. The programme
sponsaors various activities targeted at the underprivileged.
For the work of "Caring for the Cammunity” pragramme in 2016,
please refer lo the "Fulfiling Corporate Social Responsibiity”
sechion,

Under the shadow of economic uncertainty, the retail industry
is facing difficulties. CMA will continue to dedicale resources to
prompie and update lhe image of HKBPE so that it will stay
attractive to the public.
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Opening ceramaony of The 5t Hong Kong
Food Carrial®
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Hong Kong Food Carnival
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The 5th Hong Kang Food Carnival was anather highlight of
the year. It was successfully held in Kwal Chung Sports
Ground from 28 October to 6 November 2016, There were
280 booths as well as stalls featuring special delicacies in
the camival this year, drawing & large number of foodies to
the carnival.

In the opening ceremany, we invited government officiais,
including the then Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development Mr Gregory So, the then Secretary for Food
and Health Dr Ko Wing-man, and "Ambassador of Care"
Ms Maria Cordero to be the Guests of Honor, Since the
camival ceincided with Halloween, the Halloween theme
was used in decorations and the design of activilies.
Activities included "Halloween Talent Show" and "Halloween
Party and Parade", participants could also enjoy mini games
and free Halloween make-up service.

ERPHERARETERE
Guests toured around the Hong Kong Food Carnival
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TF Maria Corderol (B AERESE | T ERETEH

Singer Maria Cordero conducted cooking demonstration
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We also designed a8 GPS guided Wechal game through
which visitors could win prizes, as well as receive
information about the carnival and booth locations.

The Hong Kang Food Camival used o be a biannual evenl,
but with its increasing popularity, it has become an annual
function since 2015, CMA will strive to make the Hong Keng
Food Camival another remarkable institution like the
HKBPE.
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Mainland Exhibitions
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Since 2004, CMA has organised Brands and Products Expo
in major Mainland cities, to introduce Hong Kong companies
and products 1o Mainland residents.

For the first time, CMA held "2016 Hong Kong Trendy
Products Expo, Dalian®, from 26 to 29 August 2016, with 280
booths showcasing over 300 Hong Kong brands. During
the 4-day period, over 200 thousand people visited the
show, opening a door to the emerging economic
powerhouse of narthern China for Hong Kong businesses.
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2016 Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo, Macau
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Opening Cemmony of the"2018 Hong Keng'Brand ‘and
Product Expo Macau®

Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo, Macau
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2016 was the year that HKBPE made its debut in Macau.
The 3-day "2016 Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo,
Macau" was held in Macau Fisherman's Wharf Convention
and Exhibition Centre from 25 te 27 March 2016. In the
Expo, there were 220 booths and over 100,000 people
attended the event.

The success of the Macau Expo did not only reflect the
popularity of Hong Kong products, but it also showed us the
greal polantial of the Macau marksl. In view of this, CMA plans
to host another Expo at the same venue from 13 fo 17 April
2017.

With the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge nearinig complation,
it is expected that economical activities between these
cities will become more vigorous; CMA is considering (o
make HKBPE in Macau a regular annual evenl to serve as a
solid and lasting business partnership platform between

Hong Kong and Macau.
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"2016 Hong Kang Brand and Product Expo Macau"
atiracted 100,000 visiiors
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HKBPE has been present in12cities

To explore Ihe opportunities arising from the closer
Cross-Strait relations and to promote Hong Kong products
in Talwan, CMA led a group of Hong Kong enterprises
o join the "Taiwan MNew Year Markel Fair', held belwean
21 and 25 January 2016 in Taipei.
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Online HKBPE
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As online shopping growing in popularity these days, CMA
has partnered with Yahoo Hong Kong Store and Soul
Marketing in launching "Onling HKBPE" in October 2016,
Our objective was to extend the strengths and potential of
HKBPE from offline to online, providing the public with a
24-hour shopping experience. "Online HKBPE" could also
serve Hong Kong companies as a new sales and promotion
platform. With this new channel, companies could stay
connecled with consumers.

As of today, over 100 brands have joined "Online HKBPE'".
Apart from the regular promotions such as "Manthly Limited
Offers" and "Products of the Month", "Online HKBPE" will also
launch an ©20 marketing campaign during vanous expoesilions
organised by CMA. For instance, during the 51sl HKBPE, &
pre-order promotion was launched online, allowing the
public to enjoy up to 90% discount on specific products or
purchase products for only $1. Cuslomers can pick up the
ordered items on sile al the Expo. With the new exciternent
of "shop online, pick up offing”, most of the products were
sold durng the pre-order period and "Online HKBPE'
achieved a 240% growth in sales in that month.
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‘Online. HKBPE" |s an alknew promotional
pratfarm for Homg Kong products

JREHRFE Exhibition Services

We plan to roll out around 20 promotions on "Online HKBPE"
in 2017 and we will also step up our marketing efforts
through such means as our own expositions, print media,
e-marketing, social media and search engines.

In the future, CMA will invite more merchants to join us on
‘Online HKBPE", in the hope thal we can provide an
all-round shopping experience with betler discounts to the
public.

a0 16 F ) L T mE|
CMA launched the "Online HKBPE In 2016
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Testing and Certification Services
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Testing and Certification is a core activity supported by CMA. Despite the sluggish global
economic growth In recent years, it is indisputable that demand for product safety and
environmental friendliness is Increasing. To seize the opportunities, CMA Testing and
Certification Laboratories (CMA Testing) strives to enhance its service quality and at the
same time actively explores potential markets.

#HAF0E2EB AR Testing and Certification Services
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Worldwide Network Coverage
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CMA Testing has a widespread footprint in Asia, Middle East,
Europe and North America and has been actively to explore
markets in Germany, France and UK in recent years. In 2016,
with the support of its Germany representative, CMA Tesling
signed a memorandum of understanding (Mol} with a local

-agricultural arganisation, with an aim to support food industries

on both import and export trade to China through our testing
and consultancy services.

I order 1o have & betler understanding of the potential market
environment and the needs of local enterprises, CMA Testing
has participated In various international exhibitions during
2016, including CES Show and PPA| Expo held in Las Vegas in
January, New York Toy Fair and International Consumer
Product Health and Safety Organization (ICPHSO) Annual
Meeting and Training Symposium in February, Macao
International Environmental Co-operation Forum & Exhibition
{MIECF) in Macau in March, Buildd4Asia 2016 held in Hong
Kong in May, Tokyo Toy Show in Japan in June, The 110th
China Dally-use Articles Trade Fair in Shanghai in August,
Mirnang Huacao Travel Shopping Festival cum  Quality
Promation Week in Shanghai in Seplember and Tokyo Gift
Show in Japan in September. Through participating in these
exhibitions, CMA Testing staff could reach out the potential
customers and thus build a diverse customer base.

HE LS S ECES 2016
CMA Testing joined the GES 2018 far the first time
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Reputation Building
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CMA Testing obtained different intemational accreditations for its
guality and rellable testing and certification services in 2016.
Since 13 January 2018, CMA Testing has been approved by
the International Accreditalion Service (IAS) in compliance with
requirements of ISOYMECTTOZ20:2012. In addition, it has sustained
the Deutsche Akkreditierungsstelle (DAKKS) accreditation for
the Eleciromagnetic Compatibility (EMC} Testing according fo
ISO/IEC 17025:2005 since March 2016.

As lor pharmaceutical testing, CMA Testing was accredited by
International Accreditation Service (IAS) as the first labaratory
for canducting compressed air test in Hong Kong, providing
professional and recognised service o ensure Lhe safely and
guality of products. |tis also the first third party laboratory that
obtained The Hong Kong Laboratory Accraditation Scheme
(HOKLAS) accreditation in microbiological examination in
purified water for pharmaceutical products, non-sierile
pharmaceutical and Chinese medicine according o
Pharmacopoeia of the People's Republic of China (PPRC)
2015, Morzover, our Genetically Modified Organisms (GMO)
Analysis for food products recently earmned accreditation from
The Hong Kong Laboralory Accreditation Scheme (HOKLAS).

Sustainable Business Development
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To achieve sustainable development and quality living, we
must strike a balance between the environment, society and
the economy. CMA Testing has actively deveioped new projects
and upgraded its services, including introducing Building
Environmental Assessment Method (BEAM) services lo
government  departments, construction  enferprises  and
property management companies for conducting
evaluation of the environmental impacts in terms of air,
water quality, stack emission and noise. In addition, our new
System Development, Management and Partnership
Programme offers comprehensive consultancy and advisory
sarvices fo retailers, brands and factories to enhance the
management and effectiveness of the supply chain system.
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CMA Testing has alsc expanded its business scopes to the
consullancy services in coping with customer business and
market needs as well as customised value-added services.
Since 2016, our pCm consultant has started to work with
local pCm practitioners in handling the technical and
praclical issues throughout the pCm registration process.

Further to the firsl-ever Internationally-recognised Hong
Kong Product Carbon Footprint (PCF) Label Programme
launched in 2015, a large-scale meeiing was held by CMA
Testing and China Quality Certification Center (Guangzhou
branch) in Guangzhou in March 2018 with highlights on the
carbon iabeling mechanism in bolh Hong Kong and
Guangdong. During the conference, a Memaorandum aof
Understanding for Cooperation was signed.

PCF Label Programme proved lo be a great success in
Hong Kong. CMA Testing will further seek more cooperation
opportunities with mainland China in future.
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CMA Testing and China Quality Certification Center (Guangzhou branch)
signed a MOU for [oint cooperation on carbon labeling scheme
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Close Liaison with Industry
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CMA Testing has always maintained close communication
with the industry to explore business opportunities. In 2016,
CMA Testing's representatives were invited to give speeches
at many large-scale fairs and received media interviews to
introduce the development and needs of the ftesting
industry. In addition, CMA Testing co-organised the
seminar of "Exploring the New China Food Safety Law -
Compliance and Standards” with G51.

CMA Testing always welcomes overseas and local
organisations and groups to visit its laboratory. In 2016, wa
were pleased o have the courtesy visits by representatives
from Qingyuan Govemnment, Shenzhen and Thailand's
Testing Centers, enterprises from Guangzhou as well as
professional teams from Zhongshan and Russia.
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Advance with the Times
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Efficient Operation
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CMA Testing is always guick to use its experlise to respond
to legisiative changes and resolve various social incidents,
For instance, in the poisoning incidents invalving dried
puffer fish in August 2016 and pesticide residues in oat
products in May 2018, CMA Tesling quickly launched
corresponding tesling services to ease public concerns
and doubts,

CMA Testing s well eguipped with advanced instruments
and regularly undergoes eguipment upgrade lo comply
with the requirements of new regulations or updated testing
standards. In line with rapid business development, iis
Sherzhen subsidiary, Yubiao Testing and Cerlification Laboratory
{(Shenzhen) Limiled, has relocated lo a new premises
equipped with advanced testing equipment to fulfil
increasing market demand.

Regarding the latest FCC regulation in 2017, a wireless
radiated testing system (R&S TS 8997) was newly installed
to shorten FCC lesting lead time. CMA Testing also invested
in new chemical testing equipment, including Solid Phase
Micro Extraction (SPME)/Headspace sampler — GC-MS
far testing VOCs and relevant services as well as High
Definition (HD) Prime XRF for fast screening of inorganic
analysis in consumer products.

Service
BRENEHRAT - RERN R ARATERE | SOERRLS
AP ie S RS

The relocated Shenzhen subsidiary comparty - Yubiao Testng
and Certiication Laboratory (Shenzhen) Limited was
equipped with advanced testing equipment

Boundaries
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CMA Testing nas been equipped with a standard J-metre anechcic chamber
and wireless radiated i2sting system (R&S TS 8957) 10 provide compatible test
and wireless radisted fast with shorier tesling lead tima than ever
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Nurturing talents is one of our missions. Through laboratory

Contribution to the Community
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CMA Testing provided a foad testing training workshop for

HEBU CIE students

visits, students are introduced to various product testing
services and their awareness of testing and certification
industry development is thus enhanced. Meanwhile, CMA
Testing was also invited by the College of International
Education of the Hong Kong Baptist University to provide
food lesting training courses which comprised lheorelical
training and internship oppertunities for students.
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Certification and Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) Services
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Being a member of the international Chamber of Commerce,
CMA has been designaled by the Hong Kong Governmenl
to issue all kinds of Certificates of Crigin since 1967. Since
2004, CMA has been authorised to issue the Certificate of
Origin - CEPA. Al the cerlificates issusd by CMA are
internationally accepted and legally protected by the
Protection of Non-Government Certificates of Origin Ordinance.
Currently, CMA has 3 offices conveniently located in Central,
Mengkok and Kwun Tong to offer businesses easy access
to our certification services.

As a result of the sluggish global economy, the demand for
certification has decreased, with around 10,000 certifications
done in 2016. Aligning with the Government's promation of
the wider use of EDI services in business, CMA infroduced
the EDI Trade Declaration Service Centers since 1997, This
is (o enable lraders and manufacturers, whose companies
have not yet been fully computerised, to enjoy the benefits of
electronic commerce. In 2016, our EDI services had
processed over 25 000 applications.

Following international guidelines, since 2018, CMA has
streamlined the service for certification of documents. With
this improvement, we hope thal we could help facilitate
trade while at the same time align with the requirements of
customs, consulates and banks of different countries, to
maintain the legitimacy of documents.
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General Insurance Agent Service
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CMA Insurance Agent Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of
CMA and offers insurance intermediary agenl service lo all
business communities in Hong Kong.

To raise awareness of members and industries in risk
management, the company regularly publishes a "Hong Kong
Risk Index for Cargo'. In 20186, the cargoe risk continued to
drop, yet the claims ratio had increased by 0.2% in the second
half year. This reflected that export business had improved in
the second half of 2016, as wall as the increase in the
significance of cargo insurance for importers.

The company worked with a platform run by TradeLink to
launch the premier online cargo insurance platform in 2011,
allowing importers and exporters to purchase insurance with
one click and provide them with instant coverage. In 2016, the
service was extended to a large local consolidator, providing
its clients with insurance for their overseas online shopping.
This breakthrough has transformed the company’s business
from serving traditional logistic industry to serving online retail

industry.

The company plans to launch "local and export credit insurance”
in the first quarter of 2017, covaring global exports and local
trades. The unigue selling points for this service are: instant

quotation, claims could be made up to 90% and premium
financing with low interest rate.

Company Secretarial Services

BETHSRBERAR RN
MBS I AR - 27 GEE)
HE Dbt ERAAERYE B
BOE TR EHARBEERBEEE -

CMA Secretarial Services Limited is a2 wholly-owned subsidiary
of CMA. The Company provides one-stop professional
services, including business registration, company secratary,
registered address and mailing service, virual office,
armangement of accounting and audt, etc.
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Make a Difference to Society
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With our ongoing commitment to corporale social responsibility,
we have been named "Caring Organisation” by The Hong Kong
Councll of Social Service for many years. CMA Social and
Community Affairs Standing Coemmittee, Education Standing
Commitiee, Ladies' Committee and Youth Commillee take a
leading role in organising and facilitating different projects
that are beneficial Lo the socialy.

We have sel up a special reserve fund and *HKBPE Caring for
Cormmunity” fund to support causes thal we believe can make
a meaningful difference. In 2016, CMA deonated a total of
HKS42.9 million to fund diverse projects related to education,
yvouth development, charitable initiatives, social harmany and
industrial development.

HRE R AR

Usage of CMA Donations and Sponsorships

3%
5% LR
ROMIHE - BWBM Charities

...........

Industry Promotion =======- - ﬁ )

and Brand Development

[y

8%
AL RAR

Cultural and
Celebration Activities
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Education and Youth

* Including CMA Employee Cara Fund and special projects of the two CMA secondary schools
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Talent Development
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Support Tertiary Education

CMA believes that talent is the foundation for Hong Kong's
future development, In the past year, CMA made regular
donations lo wvarious institutes to improve the guality of
education.

To encourage young people lo explore opporiunities In
China, CMA organised an exchange tour for university
students in August 2016 1o visil Dalian, With the helg from
Education Bureau, we recruited 47 students from 8
Hong Kong universities to join us in visiting companies and
universities in Dalian. The students were also offered inlemship
oppartunity at our "2016 Hong Kong Trendy Expa, Dalian’,

BREEW 1755 L
Institute Project Donation ($HK)
riverait of Sol A RBERAHE e B
W%W n:lfag' i ‘Supporting overseas learming programs S{B05i0
A A . .
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e el CMA Global Internship Fund 4500000
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Hong Kong Baptit Unnorsiy e a0 O Sl ot SR
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Hong Kong CMA Tesling and Cedification Scholarship Py
_ mEATAR FLTASISRERTIEESE 000 SR
‘City Universiy of Hong Kong nge sonolarships and non ocal ntemshio awercs 200000
HFAABPERLERR EUES RS
HKL SPACE &0t Anniversary Fund 300,000
 ERHEAS TR EA I T R R R E A -
The Education University of ng China's Sacio-Economic Developmen 2,000,000
Hong Kong ggqa;f slobalization® and "The ECUHK Foundatior
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Donations to tertiary institutes

o2 $24,400,000
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Hong Kong tartiary studenis gained working expariance from
*Hong Kong Trendy Products Expo, Datian”

CMA Lecture Thealer Naming Ceremony
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HKUST hosted naming ceremony of CMA Lecture Theater
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CMA Secondary School and CMA
Choi Cheung Kok Secondary School

Established in 1976, CMA Secondary School currently has
715 students. During the year, the school won several awards
in sports and academics, including Champion (Group 2 Men)
in Inter school athletic meet, Champion (Senior Form) and
First runner-up (Junior Form) in HK Tech Challenge Game, 9th
place in MATE International Competition, etc. The students'
results in public examinations have also shown significant
improvement in 2018.

BT ¥4 EHEE Fulfilling Corporate Social Responsibility
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Established in 1884, CMA Choi Cheung Kok Secondary
School admits both Chinese-speaking and non-Chinese
speaking sludents, laking & lead in promoting cultural
harmony. By the end of 20186, it had 305 students. The school
participated in the production of a charity movie "Our Class
6E" - through the stories of a few secondary school students,
the movie aimed to spread the message of caring for young
people and the mincrities.

Scholarships

Since 1964, CMA has been giving scholarships lo
nutslanding secondary school and university students every
year, lo recognise their achievement and encourage them lo
aim higher. In 2016, CMA presented scholarships worth
HKE720,000, benefiting 455 students from 127 universities
and secondary schools. The Education Standing Committee
has plans fo gradually exiend the project to cover all
secondary schools in Hong Kong.

CMA presents scholarships 1o outstanding sludents every year

BREERE e S

=, $720,000

Scholarships were presented by CMA
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Business-School Partnership
Programme (BSPP)

Initiated by CMA, the Business-School Partnership Programme
which offers secondary school students summer intemship
positions, has been successfully running for 8 years. In 2018,
the programme extended to include university students
majoring in engineerng, design and information technology.
We have matched 23 students with 14 corporate members in
2016; cumulatively, we have matched over 200 students with
dozens of companies.

international Mathematical Olympiad

CMA allocated HKE1 million to support The 57th International
Mathematical Olympiad In 2016, which gathered hundreds of
students from all over the world In Hong Kong. We hope that this
initiative could raise young people's interest in sludying
mathematics and science, and help publicize the success of
education in the HKSAR. The compettion was successiully held
from 6 to 16 July 2016, with 602 contestants from 108 countries
and regions. The Hong Kong team won 3 gold medals, 2 silver
medals and 1 bronze medal.

Encourage Innovation and Entrepreneurship

*Social Cohesion — Multiple Pathways to Success”’ programme
was introduced by CMA Education Standing Committes in 2015,
Through a series of activilies such as jub shadowing, university
life experience, and visit to Hong Kong Science Park, the
programme aimed to help secondary schoal students better
plan and prepare for higher education and future careers. In
2018, with the support from Education Bureau, the programme
was extended 1o all secondary schools in Hong Kong and visil to
disciplinary forces was first introduced. 2560 participants from 57
schoals joined the pragramme.

BT ¥4 & B\ Fulfilling Corporate Social Responsibility
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CMA Youlh Committee organised the "Shorl Film Ad
Competition" and "Booth Design Competition® again in 2016 for
leenagers o showcase lheir lalent and creativily. More than 100
groups invalving 600 teenagers pariicipated in the "Short Film Ad
Competition" and created TV commercials for different brands. In
‘Booth Design Compelilion”, a tolal of 80 young people from 20
teams participated with a business proposal. The best 8
proposals were given the oppartunity to realise their plans by
zelling products in the 51st HKBPE.

[iiigm BRI &) emss

Participants of "Multiple Pathways to Success 20168"
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Caring for the Underprivileged
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Sharing Joy with Hong Kong Citizens
under Fireworks

On 9 February 2016, CMA for the first time sponsored the Lunar
MNew Year Fireworks Display and hosted an unprecedented
dinner receptlion, *Appreciate Hong Kong: Sparde with Love and
Care", al the Grand Hall of Hong Keng Convention and Exhibilion
Centre. We inviled 1,000 Hang Kong cilizens lo enjoy the
fireworks shaw and dinner together with the then government
officials, Including Chief Executive the Hon Leung Chun-ying,
Chiel Secrelary of Adminisiration Office Carmie Lam, and leaders
from ali sectors of the community.
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CMA invited 1,000 ess privileged citizens to the Lunar New

Year Fireworks Dinner Reception in 2018
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HKBPE Caring for Community

The "HKBPE Caring for Community” programme dedicales
a portion of the profits from HKBPE for social purposes. On
31 December 2016, CMA invitad 10,000 grassroot citizens
to the Expo, and each participant was given a HKS300 cash
coupon for shopping. In the evening, we were honored to
hawve the then Chief Executive the Hon Leung Chun-ying,
the then Chief Secretary of Administration Office Carrie
Lam, and officials of Liaison Office of the Cenlral PRC
Government, to countdown to 2017 with citizens. This event
was also the kickoll for CMA celebrations for the 20th
anniversary of the HKSAR.

Apart from supporling the countdown event, HKBPE Caring
for Community Fund also jpined the Tung Wah Group of
Hospitals in sending gift parcels to 1,200 pzople who lived
in partitioned units.

[ TReARBATR] 318

HKBPE Caring for Community donated

$6,800,000
10,000 22525, e
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the counldown event
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The then Chief Executive CY Leung distributed cookies at
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Bringing Warmth to Society Variety Show

CMA Ladies' Commillee has been organising "Bringing Warmth
o Society Variety Show” since 2012, with the objective to bnng
joy and love to the community. Until today, over 3,000 individuals
have benefited from this project. In 2016, supported by Office of
Community Welfare (Wanchal and Eastemn District), a varety
show was presented at Youth Sguare, Chai Wan, hosting over
600 elderty, underprivileged, disabled and recovenng people, The
guests enjoyed amazing performances and each was given a
gift parcel. We were honored to have the then Secretary for
Labour and Welfare Mr Cheung Kin-chung 10 be the guest of
honor. Ladies' Committee has planned to hold the next Variety
Show in Shatin in 2017.

MED0DAEEN6 [BRE [ E| 2

Over 600 people participated in the "Bringing Warmth to Society Variety Show" in 2016
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Lady Ambassador Election

Having received positive feedback for 2015 Election, CMA
Ladies’ Commitlee hosted "Lady Ambassador Election” again In
2016. Jointly organised with Office of Community Welfare
{Wanchai and Eastern District), the election aimed {o recognise
women who actively participated in community services and
promote the value of feminine power.

This year we received 66 nominations. After preliminary and
final interviews, & ambassadors were elected. The winners
were awarded with medals, trophies and cash coupons;
they were alsc awarded with a "social service fund" from
CMA for planning future community service projects. We
hope that good spirit will be brought to every corner of
Hong Kong thraugh our Lady Ambassadors.

Helping Rehabilitated Offenders
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CMA has since 2014 jointly held the Job Fair for Rehabilitated
Offenders with the Correctional Services Department and
Merchanis Support for Rehabiltated Offenders Commilieg
Limited. The initialive aims to provide a platform for persons in
custody to get a job, thus helping them reintegrate into socisty
on their refease. The 2016 Job Fair was successfully held on 7
December 2076, offering around 300 positions and mors than
200 persons in custody applied for these jobs at that event. In
addition, a special fund was set up to reward those employed
rehabilitated offenders to remain in employment.

CMA had also donated HKE480,000 to Correclional Services
Cepartment for the establishment of the "CMA Education
Development Fund for Persons in Custody”. The fund providad
financial assistance o parsons in custody for taking vocations|
courses and examinations. The 3-year sponsorship progamme
was launched on December 2015, Untl 31 December 2016, 84
persons in custody from 7 correclional facilities have been
sponsored for undertaking vocational training.

An art exhibiion by persons in custody was held in Seplember
2016 at KC100. It aimed to help the public develop a positive
view abolt persons In custody and to spread the anti-crime
MEssage.

EmEaREs ATRE [RiEHMEg— e HEE]
CMA organised the Job Fair for Rehabiltated Cffenders
i
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Environmental Protection
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With keen concemn about environmental protection, the
Sustaingble Development Committee represented CMA to
reflect its views to the government on environment policies and
charging for municipal solid waste.

To minimise waste in exhibitions, 2 "Booth Design Competition” is
held every year at HKBPE to recognise exhipitors who adopt
environmentally friendly designs. In recentyears, we have invited
university students to collect unwanted materials and reuse or
recycle them in other projects after the exposition.

CMA has taken every opporiunity 1o support activiies organised
by other bodies with a green cause, for instance, CWMA
sponsored the charity dinner of Food For Good on 8 October
2016 and provided them with a booth at HKBPE to promote
leftover recycling. In addition, CMA supported the Hong Kang
Green Day 2016 and Eco Expo Asia 2016 organised by Green
Council and Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

We have alsc been promoling green life in our ewn office,
especially in energy saving, double-sided photocopy and even
replacing paper coples with electrenic documents. We are also
commitied to more sustainable procurement practices with
energy-efficient and eco-friendly being cur major criteria.
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Support to Social Enterprises
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CMA supporis the development of social enterprises, With the
assistance from Home Affairs Department and Social Wellare
Department, CMA offered 10 booths at the 51st HKBPE 1o sccial
enterprises (o suppart their causes Lo help disabled, the minority
and women to integrate into the community.
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Encouraging Active Participation in Community Services
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CMA Voluntear Team seid flags far the Hong Kang
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CMA encourages members and staff to participate In
community services. In 2016, we set up the CMA Voluntesr
Team and engage involunteer works, During the year, the team
participated in the fiag days organised by the Hong Kong
Asthma Society and Po Leung Kuk, and volunteered in "From
Darkness to Sunrse” City Orlentesring Competition, ste.

To enhance members' understanding of the value of
volunteering, we have organised a sharing session, inviting
representatives from a social enterprise under Direction
Association for the Handicapped, ta shars with members about
their first-hand expenience in serving the disabled.

Through our Human Resources Division, we made donations to
vietims of unfortunate inicidents in the city.

HEEERERIEENEAE
CMA Valunteer Team visited the
eldarly home

BITEEHEHE Fulfilling Corporate Social Responsibility
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Caring for Our Staff
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EESERLERELETRTE
CMA organised a company retreat to Foshan

N

We are serious about providing & stable and comfortable
work environment for our staff. During the year, we organised
several staff acliviies to foster the sense of belonging of
staff, including a retreat to Foshan, Christmas Party, Spring
Gathering, deparimental gatherings, etc. For emergency
support, CMA has set up a fund to help staff who encounter
financial difficulties,

We also care about the well-being and personal development of
our staff. We have put in resources to support continuous
education. CMA encaurages its staff to participate In training
courses organised by CMA Training Centre, and if they
would like 1o receive further work-related training, they can
apply for an education grant.
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Footwear & Leather
#lwrA

Mr Lau Chung Ming

ETEAPHER
Electronics & Optical Products

HRE
Mr Lal Wal Sing. Wilson

1k
Drugs & Medicines
FRE

Ms Lee Jai Ying

PEN

Plastic Products
IeEee

Mr Suen Fai Chuen, Alan

R
Electrical Appliances

HiER
Mr Lur Tal Kei, Herbert

EEEAR
Catering Services
2]

£ i
Mr Tsang Wai

EEEWELR
Stationery, Office Supplies & Sporting Goods
iR

Mr T Chun Yuen, Simon

ANESHR
Automobile Components

A
MrChu Wei Man

WEENR
Trading Services
SR

Mr Thamas Leung

HAhE R

Other Manufacturing Sectors
FiRE

Mr Les Chak Man

EEMIEHER
Fur Processing & Accessories
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MrWeong Yau Fai
Lk L #
Smart City

e

Ms Eva Chan
Ha¥
Gemstone
FE

Ms Diana Worg

{LEES M

Cosmaetic & Perfumery
o A

Ms Joanne Cheung
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Ship Manufacturing

[tEe Mot availablel *

e
Energy & Mineral
[ R Mot availablal ™~

YR S SRR S S E YT SRS The Acting Chairmen of Ship Manufacturing Industrial Commitieer s Advisar Mr Sun Yung Liang, Waren
~EEERF RGBT AFEEE R THREE The Acting Chairman of Energy & Mineral Industial Cormmitiee (s Advisor Mr Chuang Ka Pun, Alberl
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CMA Representatives / i‘crnm

W Legislative Council
S Mrthe Hon Ng Wing Ka, Jimmy

EARAWIWERSER M ELNRSFHEAY
Vetting Committee of Upward Mobility
Scholarship Societal Engagement Task Force,
Commission on Poverty

FRIE3 Dr Edward Tsui

HESREHoETRSNERERS

The Import and Export Industry Training
Advisory Committee

& == Ms Carcoline Ho Wong

EEMYEERSEEEN T

Family Friendly by Employers Award Scheme
Family Council

HERRIE (2016512 5)

Ms Wu Wing Kui, Shirley (until Dec 2018)

HMEEREENR SR REEARNKL] Fl )l
Advisory Group on Modarnisation of Corporate
Insolvency Law

Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau
S5 Mr the Hon Ng Wing Ka, Jimmy

ENMEHFERESEETN>RENENREEHESY
Consultative Group on Health Protection
Scheme under the Health Development Advisary
Committee

Food and Health Bureau

#1382 Mr Lau M W, Joseph

AERAELEAN

The Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance)
Inland Revenue Department

e (B2016F17)

Mr Marvin Hsu (since Jan 2016)

BIRMFIREESTNEANTRR ) ERAY
Rehabilitation Advisory Committee -
Sub-Committee on Employment
Labour and Welfare Bureau

[ERE Mr Calvin Chan

ERoRRSTESER

TR aMEMEAY

The Business Facilitation Advisory Committee
Economic Analysis and Business Facilitation Unit
& 3#0E Dr Dennis Ng
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1 E:- rving on Government, Statutory and other Bodies [(As ot 31 July 2017

BRIERLIAEANERASHAAA (Fo24%)
Appeal Board Panel Members under the District
Cooling Services Ordinance (Cap. 624)
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
#MHE B Mr Chu Weiman

BRTERLIREANTHEM (Ed068)

Appeal Board Panel under

the Electricity Ordinance {Chapter 406)
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
2§81 Mr Liu Siong Seng

BREERE MREEKEHY FEFERRY
Project Management Committee (PMC), Cleaner
Production Partnership Programme
Environmental Protection Department
EEH (F201TEF)

Dr Chai Ngai Chiu, Sunny (until Jun 2017)
[F{EZ 3 Mr Chan W M, Raymand

SRS (2017457 A)

Ms Susanna Ng {since Jul 2017)

[#548 Mr Calvin Chan

SEH S Mr Chin Yiu Tong

FARER2016/2017SHERBRRAFANNE TN
2016/2017 Customer Liaison Group

Hong Kong Post

ATEHE Mr Ng Ching Wun

STESINMERAR
Labour Advisory Board, Labour Department
TEAETE Mr lrons Sze

FIR(THETIRER (R2ER) AN
ERFEEAN

Factories and Industrial Undertakings
(Safety Management) Regulation
Disciplinary Board Panel Labour Department
#EE1R Dr Chai Ngai Chiy, Sunny

ZHENFENLE[ZRNETENMIESAY]
The Committee on Provision of Space

in the Legal Hub Secretary for Justice
FRE (B2016F12R)

DOr Li 8 H, Eddy (since Dec 2016)

IREREERNESAN

Certification Co-ordination Committee Trade
and Industry Department

BUEHIE Mr Stanley Au Yeung




IRREREENTNRER/E

Task Force to Support the Processing Trade
Trade and Industry Department

493 Dr Tsui Ping Kwong, Edward

ERRNARESAY
Clothing Industry Training Authority
£ 13T Mr Choi Shiu Sum, Philip

(R AT [R5 B R 3R | 173 Al 8
Industry Consultative Networks of
Wearing Apparel & Textile

The Employees Retraining Board

2 5% Mr Ngo Wai Min, Ricky

FHEENREREEY
The Hong Kong Productivity Council
%287 Dr Ng Wang Pun, Dennis

FHEEHREREHEAGER

The Hong Kong Productivity Council
Audit Committee

R, Dr Ng Wang Pun, Dennis

FEEENREREFETIEPEARTENLE
China Domestic Sales Support Programme
for SMEs The Hong Kong Productivity Council
ik Dr Tsul Ping Kwong, Edward

[(FEIARE: - SEHREN I NEER
SHEENRRER

Panel of Judges on Hong Kong Awards for
Industries: Productivity and Quality

The Hong Kong Productivity Council
e

Mr Hsu Tsun Fai, Marvin

FERARERETY

Hong Kong Trade Development Council
49 Dr Li S H, Eddy

SR Ms Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

TFRNEFN FREHNPARFLHABRER
FHOEXEFEER

Panel of Judges on The Hong Kong Print Awards
Graphic Arts Association of Hong Kong, Hong
Kong Publishing Professionals Society & Hong
Kong Trade Development Council

BER (E2016F12H)

Mr Ma Wai Mo (until Dec 2016)

FHANAREE FARERS REIMEEEMEAY
Hong Kong Houseware and Gifts and Premium Fair
Organizing Committee Hong Kong Trade
Development Council

EEE Mr Johnny Yu

FANARER GEOREMERE | KA
Intellectual Property Righis Task Force at
HKTDC Trade Fairs

Hong Kong Trade Development Council

®= 72 Dr Wong Chun

BRELEAEEEERRZERECRTENER
Judging Panel on Hong Kong Occupational
Safety & Health Award

Occupational Safety and Health Council
38 DrLi SH, Eddy

RRAZERFARFLARKRZER/RARIERAY
Working Committee on Hong Kong Occupational
Safety & Health Award

Occupational Safety and Health Council

#£4% Ms Choy Chi Ting, Eva

REZZAERUERCERAEEAY

Manufacturing Industry Safety & Health Committee
Occupational Safety & Health Council

SEE Mr Ng Kwok On, Dennis

HiRF MrBen Lo

RETSEERECREEREEECZEARSAN
Sedentary & Professional Services Safety
and Health Committee

Occupational Safety & Health Council
FEE Ms Lee Wai Fun, Slalla

fHIEE Mr Lai Wai Sing, Wilsen
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Accountancy Training Board
Vocational Training Council

g (22017538)

Wr Chang Man Piu, Francis {until Mar 2017}
FEIE (52017F4R)

Dr Wan Tak Fal, Danny (since Apr 2017)

RRUARSEUSSAY
Apprenticeship Training Board
Vocational Training Council

FEMEE (Z=20175E5R)

Mr Chan Yiu Hung, Jimmy (until Mar 2017)
SR (820174 8)

Mr Mg Kwaok On, Dennis (since Apr 2017)

ERiaERErEREARIAERAY
Electronics and Telecommunications
Training Board

Vocational Training Council

Moz (Z2017%3A)

Dr La Tai Chin (until Mar 2017)

B B (82017%4AR)

DrWang Chun (since Apr 2017)

RENEBSERGRRIIGRAY
Fashion and Textile Training Board
Vocational Training Council

MRS Dr David Hui

BRISRESEATENERAY

Higher Education Advisory Committee
Vocational Training Council

Al{EEE Mr Szeto Kin, Vitus

WA R A O R S N

Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board

Vocational Training Council

R (Z20174F38)

Mr Chang Cheng Fang {until Mar 2017)

ERE (B20175F4H)

Mr Wong Cheung Chi, Thomas (since Apr 2017)

BENNENHERENAEAY

Innovation and Technology Training Board
Vocational Training Council

MER

Dr Chan Kwok Man, Edward

BRUSESHAESEDABAY

Jewellery, Watch and Clock Training Board
Vocational Training Council

Fiate

Dr Lau Kin Wah, Kevin

BEillERFEAERNAEAY

Management & Supervisory Training Board
Vocational Training Council

Fins

Dr Wan Tak Fai, Danny

BRUAERREHERVIEERS
Manufacturing Techneology Traning Board
Vocational Training Council

R

Mr Sun Yung Liang, Warren

BElNEReERNEEAY
Metals Training Board
Vocational Training Council
Fi@ed (FE20174E3H)

Mr Yu Tak Ming (until Mar 2017)

RENaREREVAEAY

Plastics Training Board Vocational Training Council

R (E2017543R)
Mr Sun Yung Liang, Warren (until Mar 2017)
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Printing and Publishing Training Board
Vocational Training Council
@A (FE201753R)
Or 5hi Lop Tak, Allen (until Mar 2017)
{24k (B2017845)
Dr Ho Wai Kuen, Ken (since Apr 2017)

RENAAFERAERERTIRRAY

Recognition of Prior Learning Working Committee
for Retail Industry Vocational Training Council
i B Dr Chan Kwok Man, Edward

REMAREFUREAR

Committee on Technologist Training
Vocational Training Council

HEE (B2017EIR)

Mr Ng Kwok On, Dennis (until Mar 2017)

RRNEARERTEINEAN
Vocational Education and Training
Advisory Committee

Vocational Training Council

£l Mr Joseph M W Lau

RENAREEALTHRINNERNY
Vocational Training Board for People with
Disabilities Vocational Training Council
Z UM Mr Michael Liang

FEPY AR hEHAKTEERERR A NRE]
ENEAY

Steering Committee of the Innovation Technology
Fund Project "Fusion between Chinese Cultural
Arts and Robotics™

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

M (Z2016%27)

Mr Michael Liang (until Feb 2016)

FERTASERERENESAW

Advisory Committee for Graduate Employment
City University of Hong Kong

FHHE Mr Eric Les

FERWAREREERBNTAW

Advisory Committee on Graduate Employment
Hong Kong Baptist University

F|{E4E (E2016%785)

Mr Szeto Kin, Vitus (until Aug 2016)

EEH

Mr Lo Yuk Lam

F R (B20165F95)

Mr Chan Yiu Hung, Jimmy (since Sap 2016)

FHIARECEMERAETTERA
HFEPENETWEW

Panel of Judges on Hong Kang Awards for
Industries: Equipment and Machinery Design

The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
R

Mr Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny




BRIDTANTHEEGEGHHEREN
Honorary Advisor on Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence

Environmental Campaign Committee

ZFE Dr LIS H, Eddy

BREDEAYTEREAEHHASER

Awards Committee on Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence

Environmental Campaign Committee

FE 58 Dr Lo Kam Wing

S IR T R R
Board of Directors, GS1 Hong Kong
FILE MrLeung Siu Yin, Jackson

BERESSEEANACRANTERA

Panel of Judges on Hong Kong Green Awards
Green Council

e

Dr Lo Kam Wing

FEAEREEOOENDS

General Committee, Hong Kong Association for
Testing, Inspection and Certification

A ERE Mr Dominic Lam

FHEERERD

FAEEREAMSAY

Hong Kong Ethics Development Advisory
Committee Hong Kong Ethics
Development Centre

S E (F2016%12H)

Mr the Hon Mg Wing Ka, Jimmy {(until Dec 2016)
EER (B2017TF1RH)

Dr Tany Tai (since Jan 2017)

FENTFREYENNFAREAREHTFER
Final Interview Judge,

HSBC Youth Business Award

The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
5

Mr Hsu Tsun Fai, Marvin

EHERREAW

General Committes,

The Hong Kong Food Council

EZM(T201658H)

IMr Tong Wang Chow| (until Aug 2016)
T8 (A2016F0R)

Dr Ma Kai Yum (since Sep 2016)

EHENEERHENITER

Directors of the Year Awards — Panel of Judges
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

ZEHE Mr Eric Lee

FEARERREE SEABERSETEANEETRN
TlZERAONAENENETTHEEENNE|HE
ZRERRYTER

Steering Committee on "Exploring Inbound
Cross-Border Logistics Business Opportunity of
Mainland China E-Commerce Market and Formu-
lation Feasible Domestic Market Solution for HK
Logistics Industry™ Program

Hong Kong Sea Transport and Logistics Association
L (E20165F78)

Mr Moo Wai Min, Ricky (until July 2016)

FEHEANAZSRARRITEAR
Executive Gommittee, The Hong Kong Shippers’ Gouncil
§.#E DrTai Chak Leung, Tany

FHRANRERNEER
HKQAA Governing Council
{2548 MrYeung Chi Hung, Johrny

FERAEPRZAXBRERENRLEAERA
Tax Debate Competition - Panel of Judges
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
EEIH

Mr Lo Yuk Lam

RERD [REDRRE BHHITEERS
GreenPlus Recognition Award — Panel of Judges
CLP Power Hong Kong

el

MrVictor Lam
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TBAR (EZ2017%78318)

Managerial Staff (As at 31 July 2017)

fTE#® Chief Executive Officer
R (F2016F12R)

Paul 5 W Leung (Ur‘ltll Dec 2018)

HFd (H2017F58)

Raymond L M Young (Since May 2017)

HiTRER
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
# B & Rosita Law

HRENTRES - B

General Manager,

Business Services Development
8% % Stanley Au Yeung

BEARRZNE - @EE
General Manager, Policy Research & Training
BER1TE Hilson Yan

RN - R
General Manager, Finance
E i Pauline Wong

B R A WENA - #EE
General Manager,

Liaison & Community Services
& H7E Matalie Keung

HiRE - £F
Head of Corporate Communications
TH T Allson Lee

WHREE - &
Representative, Guangzhou Office
B s Zhoyu Xiaohua

HEMER - &
Representative, Dongguan Office
@ Davids Zeng
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MEWRERLDC
CMA Testing & Certification Laboratories
- FREENE

Chief Operation Officer

A8 Dominic Lam

- EEHRESE
General Manager of Business Development
FREE 45 Arthur Lam

- BE-AOREBET R -RASHRE
General Manager of Finance, Human Resources
and Administration, IT
[ i Alfred Chan

NEYERERERLE - EREERE
Chief Operation Officer,

CMA Exhibition Services Limited
T AE Winnie Yuen

EHEMBRR -

General Manager,

Hong Kong Brand Development Council
ERALEE Hilson Yan

WawREREARLE

RENREAEEELTE - 2EE

General Manager, CMA Secretarial Services
Limited / CMA Insurance Agent Limited
R[S0 Stanley Au Yeung
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To the Members of

The Chinese Manufacturers® Association of Hong Kong
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by
gharantee)

Opinion

We have audited the ammexed consolidated fnancial
statements of The Chinese Manufacturers” Association of
Hong Kong (the “Association”™) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group™), which comprise the consolidated statements
of financal position ds at December 31, 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
commpreliensive  income, the consolidated saement of
changes m swpluses and reserves and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements including a sunmary
of siguficant accounting policies.

Tn our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2016, and of the Group's fnancial
perfonnance and cash flows for the year then ended m
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HEKFESs™) 1ssued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HRICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Honz Kong Companies
Ordinance:

Basis for Opinion

We condncted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Aunditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HRICPA.
Our responsibiliies under those standards are further
desciibed i the Auditor™s Responsibilities for e Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independemt of the Group in accordance with the
HEICPA's Code of Ethies for Proféssional Accountants
(“the Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audil evidence we have obtaned is sufficienl and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

AN

BirERETRS )

fi#5# & Financial Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BESPEEEHETTR
(BB R A A R A FD)

ft g
REOOEaANSUTHAR -
L 5 B e 2
B BT SR A BRE S
(T T

FTHE AR RS BRI E
BB - BTSSR
FPE T T Bl

HATHEcHMBERR ZFSMm
B AT 2 RET RS AR
e ER S L REE
Sre i BN AT R R R T
TR E RS E T
FEE RS SR ML 7 1500, - AEFY R
TEBfTZTIF Tl REf
B B AR SRR TR
WWERE « A{TRPHH AL fof
HIRRHE -

GEARGSHBEREARE Y ®
f

% @A ERETEOIEAS
BB 2 T A AR R I R
] 1 0 B 4 R B L T
ZERGI WY N EETIER
AR A i L b A B 3
.2 SRR A e £ R e R T
I AR -

HIRHFECHMHERER FEGR
Hilh ®EEHRBES D -
6 TE 48 RO TR R R
B LREAFREERG
sTHEERE PRI EEHEN B
BE AR DR - B e A
IR EATE -

To the Members of

The Chinese Manufacturers® Association of Hong Kong
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by
guarantae)

Oiher Information

The Genegral Committee 15 responsible for the other
information.  The other information comprises the
information included in the General Committee’s report, but
does not include the financial staternents and our auditor’s
report thereor,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
uot cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conchision therson.

In connection with our audit of the consolidaied financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated fnancial
statemients or our knowledge obtained in the aundit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed. we conclude that there 1s a
material musstatement of this other mformation. we are
required to report that tact. We have nothing te report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the General Commitiee forr the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The General Commuttes is responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statemennts that give a e and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issned by the HKICPA
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the General Commmittee determines is
necessary (o enable the preparation of conselidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement. whether
due to frand or error.

In prepanng the consohdated financial statements. the
General Committes is responsible for assessing the Gronp's
ability to continne as a going concern. disclosing, as
apphicable, marters related io gomg concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the General
Committes either intends to lignidate the Group or to cease
operations. or have no realistic allemanve but o do so.
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To the Members of

The Chinese Manufacturers® Association of Hong Kong
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited lability by
gharantee)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated finaneial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement. whether due to frand or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that mcludes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose, We do nol assume
responsibility rowards or accept liability to any other person
for the content of this report,

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that ‘an audit conducted in accordance with
HEKSAs will always detect a material msstatement when it
exists. Mhsstatements can anse fom fraud or ervor and are
considered matenial if, individually or in the ageregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the econonuc
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HESAs. we exercise
professional  judgement  and  maintam  professional
skepticisin throughout the audit. We also:

* [dentify and assess the risks of matenal nusstateinent of
the consolidated financial statements. whether due to
frand or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those nsks. and obfain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is lugher than for one
resulting from error, as fravd may wvolve collusion,
forgerv, inrentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of intemal control.
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To the Members of

The Chinese Manufacturers® Association of Hong Kong
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by
guaratiee)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate m the circumstances. but not for the pupose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal contral.

* Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness ol accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the General Commuliee.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the General
Committee’s use of the goine concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtaimed,
whether a matenal vocertaimty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant donbr on fthe
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.  Tf we
conclude that a matenal uncedamnty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
refared  disclosnres in  the consolidated financial
statements or. if such disclosures are madeguate. to
modify our opimon, Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our anditor’s
report. However. funire events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to contnue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structine and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlymg transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient approprate audil evidence regarding
the financial information of fhe entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated fnancial stalements. We are responsible
for the direction. supervision and performance of the
aroip audit. We remain solely responsible for our andit
OO,
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continned)

We commmnicate with the General Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings. mcluding any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
andit

WNexia Charles Mar Fan Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Ko, Brenda Margare!

Practising Certificate Number: PO2298

July 27 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE 2016 4F 12 § 31 [
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Revenue

Othsr revenue

Administrative and operating
expensas

Change in fair value of investment
properties

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets

Losz on disposal of availalable-for-
sale financial assaels

Surplus before faxation

Taxation

Surplus for the vear

Ttems that will not be reclassifisd 1o
profit or loss

Change in fair value of leasshold
land and buildings

Remeasurement of employee
benefits

Contnbutions (fom)/to special
reserve fund and President Li
special fiund

Tax effect

Tterns that may be teclassified

subsequently to profit or loss

Nel change i1 fair value of
available-for-sale Ainancial assets

Tiems reclassified o profit or loss
Reclassification adjustiment

relating (o impairment loss on
available-Tor-sale Anancial assers

Other comprehensive income for
the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year
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The annexed notes form an miegral part of these financial statements.
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4,404,628

(140,763.130)

2015
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114.367.542

0,501,802

(107.263.220)

19.577.076 7085771
- (1.206,950)
(11.745) =
5.141.165 15.484.045
(1,204,199 (949,412}
3.036.066 17.535.533
23,003,002 1,057,650
402.000 123,000
(318.774) 1.259,344
(498.111) 485,636
1.075.164 (5.006,893)
- 1.206.950
23,754,181 25,726

527,691,147

317.561.252
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Non-carrent nsseis

Investmeit properties
Fixed assets
Available-for-sale Gnancial assers

Employee benefits

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances - designated
Cash and bank balances
Tax recoverable

Current liabilities

Deferred project spotisorship
Trade and other payables
Tax payable

Ner current assets

Total assets less cmrrent Habilities
Non-carrent Habilities

Employee benefits
Deferred tax liabilities
Provision for long service payments

NET ASSETS
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287118283 267540307
374,919,752 352,430,765
30,369,234 20305815
866,000 721.000
693,273,269 645,997 857
Sy FEL555 4,129,952
102 662 328767
138,068,066 157.296.243
22.838 347,527
143.916.121 162,102,489
2 289,950
33.577.068 37.467.938
222422 =
(33,799,490) (37.757.868)
110,116,631 124.344.601
803,389,900 714342 488
320,000 410,000
10,427.602 2.081.427
516,235 316:235
{11.263.927) (9.907.667)
1792125973 5764434826
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Note

Surpluses and reserves

Accunmlated surpluses
Reserves

2016
T

350,7933125
441.332.648

£702,125973

2015
A

351,311,984
413,122,342

$764.434.526

Approved and anthorised for issue by the General Committee on July 27, 2017 and signed on behalf by

ZEFE

Li Sau Hung Eddy
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President
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Chanman. Fmance Standing Connmittes
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The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SURPLUSES AND RESERVES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHZ 201645 12 H 31 HHERE FE 2016 4E 12 B 31 Hib =
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
- 2016 2015
BT RN FEESE :E_ :ﬁ-—
=t Assat  PPEIEEE Rkt JL L
A cunmlated revaluation Special  President Li st HES HKS
__ sopluses  _ peserve  feservefind  special nd Total BHEED Operating activifies
7T T 5T T B & ,
HES HES HKS HEKS HKS Frm B as Surplus before taxation 5,141,165 18,484,945
H ALl 1.2015 : B Adjustments for:
> 2015 - 1, 201 3 3 ’ | Hoes
r2sELHLE {Janiary 1. 334,500 507 393412681 13870794 746873 567 e Depecition 456548 136296
AR Surplus for the year 17535533 17,535,533 e pEE e Cl_lﬂﬂﬁ in fair value _Df
it | o : T myesinent properies (19.577.976) (2,935,771}
FE4 e ther oo hens1ve O] e - s 3 :
=iy year 102 705 (1,336,323 00000 1059344 45796 A SRR AR Provision for impairment on
available-for-sale financial
EE - B TeanzTors, net (5.916 5463 £ 016 836 assets . - 1206950
B 20158 12 H 3L H  AtDecember 31 2015 FIEUA Interest income (1.228.027) (2.516.460)
2015912 § 31 T December 31, 2017 ‘ ; Diividends 5 N 5 -
EoolgsE1 H1d  andlmoary 2016 3531 o4 392,076,358 19987140 L0159 344 764,434,526 Hi;ﬂ% {;‘ S 2 L:l}:. ;E dil;l;;::f of aailable-for- {1,465.867) (2,3%8.567)
TEEER Surplus for (he year 3,936,966 3,936,966 sale financial assets 11,745
HEEEEREUE S {Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed
TEMEMEEREE  Other comprehensive assets
mieome for the ';1_:91' 335,670 13737285 (312.774) 23,754,181 i (435) 2517
i (15.666 847) 13159274
PR A ot (4.191.299) 4791293 FE TR i) ek 2 (Increase)/decrease in receivables (1.592,603) 103,870
FYZ016fF 12 F 3L H  AtDecember 31, 2016 §350.793 425 S415813643  S24778435  S740.570  §792125973 FE (R Decrease m payables (3.954,715) (3,546,050}
e BRI Increase in employvee benefits 167,000 165,000
. . " . ; N ) g ERREEE Tlisation of long service
FlliRAEEFFEOEHNEELEN - (B REERER - S0 - BE - J6 EiEEFEL S payments . (76.497)
E AT - ; (R Cash (used in
i generated from
Special eserve fund and Prfl:s@d;m Li spegia] fund are cgrablishcd 1_@11 the obj;cls to support. advance and BREREE e op-el{atimls Ve (21.047,165) 9.805.507
promote industry, brand, exhibition, education and all charitable activities and projects, SEIEE D E e Tk efuited/(paid) " 201065  (537.96)
STy ) A Ner eash (used ind{from operaiing
W acivities (20.756.099) 0,268,201
EEE Tnvesting activities
B A REEE Purchiase of fixed assets {B51.633) (538.040)
HYEE (B E S R Sl Proceeds from disposal of fixed
assels 435 1.565
EdFle Inferest received 1,228,027 2,516,460
Bl R Dividend received 1,469 867 1.495.667
PR Er TR S Net cash from nmvesting aclivities 1.846.696 3.475.652
ASHEY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
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STATUS OF THE ASSOCTATION

The Chmese Manufacturers” Association of Hong Kong

% E-:‘:%}—l? Th—-EHiEER e ¢ SEED B (the “Association™) was incorporated in Hong Kong
;[-ﬂ;;j-; ’I_]}_"cg Bl > B RAER A E] under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as a
REEE Financing activities AR S IR & e sl et pupgas D
ST ST 64-66 BRRETHEr capital.  The regstered office o sociation is
_ ‘ , ) R : located at S/F, CMA Building, 64-66 Connaught Road
FlUl s e Special reserve fund received 200.000 IR SR Central. Hong Kong.
OftEFEEE L President Lispecial fund

£ | imme received, net -

@+ P (1B 77 LR, E@BIEEARAE  QERE The Assul:filatliou 1s ]umted by ﬁaﬂrﬂf:tee whmeb._‘:tr“every
AT, et e : e | LEBEEERAGELRYS member of the Associatnon undertakes to contribute o
gﬁggﬁigfﬁjﬂﬁ#& Nzrf;“ﬁ:;ﬂ;’:ued i) jrout fincncing 2 e %,J@ B it i the assets of the Association, in the event of its being

A st (318.774) _ 1259344 CE R %ﬁﬁiﬁ?}“ﬁ@ﬁ—'ﬁfﬁ wound up during the lime that he is a member, or within

i et ekl - afferwards, fi t of the debts and
e REGEMEES Net (decrease)/increase in cash W 200 FETCATERSE Liﬁ;ﬂﬁ-’:‘f*ﬁﬁ Eﬁﬂiﬁ: ,;i‘ rﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ?&,ﬁ?ﬁ;:ﬂg bef-:‘:re he ;eaa;s
() IniEEr ANt cieshy cnivatents (19.228.177) 14,003,197 ;g%igggﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁg‘ to be a member, and the costs, charges and expenses of
Y [H IR K * 2 AR winding up the same, and for the adjustment of the rights
FHFRE RRETEHE Cash and cash equivalents at W~ W B AR = B R of the coniributories amongst themselves. such amount
HitF beginning of year 157.296.243 143292 046 P& A e R e as may be required, shall not excesd HES$200,
AP TR b T TR e N 1T Cash and cash equivalents at
B end of year $138.068.066 $157.206.243 i S — PR L e - The Association 15 a non-profit making chamber of
T e Pl e i L commerce and industry.
HERMSSEESS  Analysis of the balances of cash £ ek TSRS o The Association provides services to promole commerce

#7 and cash equivalents e E A ess RSt 2 an_d‘mchmry mcludmg ;nglprﬁemmt of r:a'nﬁcmf: of

EEFELE 5 (e - AN origin, e_mld Organises ax]]_1b|tm|19 i:ll]d trade d?]egatlﬂ[m.
1H4 R ST it SR SRrAR G Eitansas $157.206.343 AE R AR RS R AT A Its subsidiaries provide different kinds of services to the

5138.068.066

Tt R ERRZ AR S - EEEH
& L S s R R R G R T
PEHEE 11 -

Aszociation and its members and the public. Particulars
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements incorporate all
income and expenditure of the Group and all assets and
liabilities of the Group so far as they are related to the
activities of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepaved o accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“TIKFRSs™) (which also inchide
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs™") and
Interpretations) 1ssued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HEICPA™). accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convenrion, except for
available-for-sale mvestients. investment properties and
buildings, which have been measured ar fair values, as
detailed in the significant accounting policies.

The accounting policies and methods of compulalion
used in the preparation of consohidated fAnancial
statements are consistent with those used in the annual
consolidated financial statements for the prior wvear,
unless otherwise stated.

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In preparing the cmrent year’s consolidated financial
statements. the Group has adopted where appropriate
new and tevised HKFRSs for the first time. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has not had
any sigmificant mmpact on the results and finmancial
position of the Group for the two years presented.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of consclidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requirss management fo maks
judgments. estimates and assumptions that affect the
appheation of policies and reported amounts of assets.
labilities, mcome and expenses. The estumates and
associated assumptions are based on  historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the cuewmnstances. the resulis of
which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liahilities that are not
reacily apparent from other sources. Actnal results may
differ fromn these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Rewisions 1o accounting eshimates
are recogmsed m the penod o wluch the estunate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both cumrent and fulure perods.

. SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

(&) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial starements of the Association and
entities controlled by the Association directly or
wmdirectly tlhrough its subsidianies.  Control 1s
achieved when the Associafion:

- has power over the mvestee;

- 1s exposed. or has rights, to varable retuzns from
its involvement with the investee; and

=~ has the ability fo use ils power to affect its
returns.




N

EETERERC®
(HEFRAERLE)

THE CHINESE MANUFACTURERS' ASSOCTATION OF HONG KONG

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

B 2016 12H 31 H L EE S B R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

3. EEWEECE (8D

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it conirols an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the thres
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majonty of the
volmg rights of an mvestee, it has power over the
mvestee when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the wvestes umlaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give 1t power. including:

= the size of the Group's holding of voling rights
telative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties:

-~ mghts arising from other contractual
arrangenients, and

- any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at
the tine that decisions need 1o be made,
weluding  voting  pattens at  previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTIES

(CONTINUED)

(a) BFeEE (44)

A= SR T8 1 A o wl
PERF I B 1) slaR e ARE
AGTE R LT 2 SRR
UL AR - BEWE - BE
o [ PO MR AR B 2 P
Al ZUC ABERE R » IR
BTl L E s
U] o 2 1 2 SR R
Ik - e AS S Em TN -

ook A RIS AT
M o Y G SRS R 4E
fut 7% P g en () B L (= &
LR 7 SO R ] 2 2 R
By TR O R R i B () DA
ENBEHE (QENE) B
AR RN =
3 - FTE LigisE T AR
AR ELTFEEEH
P & B o ekt AR
EUE R ( BIRER &
mESENEN T EF G
WER R AR S
[EE/MEAESNEEL S
fit) -

o7 R B il 5 AR A
EEE EERGRE - [
B 2 S U SR T B
nEaEs  HELRas
T AR A R R s R A

(a} Basis of consolidation (confinued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary beging when the
Group oblains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses conirol of the subsidiary.
Specifically. income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included

in the consolidated statememt of profit or loss and

other comprehensive wcome from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss 15 recognised i profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retamed interest
and (i1) the previeus camving amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-comtrolling interests.  All amounts
previously recogmised 1 other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiarv are accounted
for ‘as if' the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or habilites of the subsidary (ie
reclassified to profit or loss or tensferred o another
catezory of equity as specified/permirted by
applicable HKFRSs).

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are atimbuted to the Association. Total
comprehensive meome of subsidiaries 1s atbuted
10 the Association even if this results having a deficit
balance.

N
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTIES
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Basis of consolidation {confinued)

When necessary, adjnstments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries o bring their
accounting policies inio hne with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All irragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income.
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between mewmbers of the Group are elimmnaied m full
on consehidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group®s share
of the ner identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acqusition. Goodwill on
acquisition of subsidiaries 15 meluded in intangble
assets. Goodwill is tested anmually for impairment
and camied at cost less accunmlated impairment
losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the camying amount of goodwill relating 1o
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated io cash-generating units for the
purpose of inpairment testing.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acqurees” identifiable assets. liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of the
acquisition of subsidiaries, after reassessment, is
recopnised immediately in the consolidated profit or
loss,
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTIES
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Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the
Association. Investnents i subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impainmeni loss in the Association's
statement of financial position.  Results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Association on
the basts of dividends received or receivable during
the year.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held for long-
termn rental yields or for capital appreciation or botl.
and comprise land held under operating lease and
buildines

Tand held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of mvestment property 1s met. The
operating lease is accounred for as if it were a
finance lease,

Investment properties are measured initiallv at cost
incliding related transaction cost.  Subsequent to
mihial recogmition. wvestment properties are stated
at fair value, The fair value of investunent properties
is derernrined annually by an independent valier,

Fauw value gams or losses are recoguised m profit oo
loss in the year in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes & building
because ifs use has changed as evidenced by
commencement of an operating lease to another
party, the fair valne of that irem ar the date of
transfer is recognised as the deemed cost and
subszquently depreciated at 3% on a reducing
balance basis.
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Investment properties (continued)

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an
investment property is recognised i profit or loss in
the year of the disposal or retirement.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated al cost or valuation less
accunnulated depreciation and mupaimment losses, 1f
any. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to working condition and location for ils
mrended wse, Expendimre incurred after the fixed
assets have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance cost. is normally charged to profit
or loss in the penod in which it 15 incurred. In
stiuations where if can be clearly demwounstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economuc benefits expected to be obtamed
from the use of an asset. the expenditme 1s
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or
valuation, to their resicual values. if any, over their
estimated useful lives at the following rates per
QNI 011 & pro rate basis:

Buldings 3% on a reducing balance basis

Land Cwver the fenms of lease

Furniture. Initial charge of 30% ou cost in the
fixmmwes and  year of acquisition, 30% in the
equipmEnt second year and 20% in the third

year
Compnter Initial chargs 40% on cost in the
equupment year of acouisition and 30% in the
succeeding years
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(g) Fixed assets (continued)

Residual wvalues, useful lives and depreciation
methed are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each year-end date.

If a bmlding becomes an mvestment property
because 1ts use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-ocapation. any  difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the
date of transfer i1s recogmised in asset revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retiremnent of the
asset, the relevani revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to accomulated surphises.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirenzent of an asset
15 the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Teases of assets under which the lessee assumes
substantially all the nisks and benefits of ownership
are classified az finance leases. Leases of assets
under which the lessor has not transferred all the
risks and benefits of ownership are classified as
operating leases.
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(f) Leases (continued)

Where the Group acquire the use of asseis under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower. the present
value of the tmmimum lease payments. of such assets
ave mcluded n fixed assets and the comesponding
liabilities. net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost of the
assets in equal annval amounts over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtamn ownership of the asset. the life of the asset. as
sel out w note 3(¢) above, Fmaunce charges muplicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss
over the period of the lsases so as 1o produce an
approximately constamt penodic rate of chiarge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for cach
accounting period.

Where the Group is the lessor. assets leased by the
Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets. and rentals recervable under the
operaring leases are credited to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee. renfals payable under the
operating leases are charged to profit or loss on the
stradght-line basis over the lease temms,
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(g) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed equity securities that are
designated as  available-for-sale financial assets.
They are mitally recogmsed at fair value and
remeasured at each year-end date, with any resulting
valuation gaing or losses recopgnised as a separate
component of reserve. They are included in non-
current assets, unless management intends to dispose
of that security within twelve months of the year-end
date.

On disposal of a security, the gain or loss
representing the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of that security
together with the surplus or deficit in reserve. il any,
is recognised in profit or loss,

(h) Tmpairment of assets

(i) Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale  financial  assets  are
remeasured al the year-end date to determine
whether there is  objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
arising from observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group, includes a sigmficant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below cost.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets 15 recogmised by reclassifying the
cumulative loss that is recognised in the asset
revaluation reserve to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the cost and current fair value, less any
previously recognised impairment.
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(i)

(i)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
for equity investments classified as available-
for-sale financial asseis are not subsequenily
reversed through profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in profit or loss for debt
instruments classified as available-for-sale
financial asscts are subsequently reversed and
recognised in profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event ococuming after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Impairment of other assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation, and they are tested for
impairment at least annually and reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouni
may not be recoverable. Asscts that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever evenis or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrving amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carmrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’'s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purpese of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separatcly identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units).
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fi#5# & Financial Report

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1)

(1)

(k)

Governinenl grant

Funds manted by govermument or govermnent
designated authorities/agencies for supporting the
projects of the Group are taken up as deferred
mcome upon the applications approved by the
offerers. When the Group has fulfilled and comphed
with the reguirements and conditions, the entitled
portions of fimds are recognised as the income and
the relevant costs ncuned are properly accounied
for.

Trade and other receivables

Receivables are recognised mitially at fair value and
subsequently measured al amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less  provision for
impainment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables 1s established when there 1s
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of recervables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the assel’s carrving amounl
and the present value of estimated fimre cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount
of the provision is recogmised 1o profit or loss.

Trade and other pavables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be mmunatenal. i which case they
are stated af cost,
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Provisions

A provision 15 recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constmctive abligation as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
pequired to settle the obhgation. and a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been
recomused are charged agaiust the related provision
in the year in which the expenditures are incurred.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
penod and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time valus of
money is material, the amount provided is the
present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented
m Hong Kong dollars. which 1s the Group’s
functional and presentation currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional
curency and items included in the consolidated
financial statemments of sach entty are measured
using thar fimerional ewrency. Foreign curency
mansactions are initially recorded nsing the
humctional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions,  Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated ar
the functional currency rates of exchange mling at
the end of the reporting period. All differences are
recognised it profit or loss.
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(1) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised on the following basis;

(i) Subscription fee income from ordinary
members recogmised when apphcations for
new membershup has been approved by the
General Commirttee of the Association and
will also apply to existing members who have
not withdrawn or have not been expelled
during the year.

Subscription fee income from permanent
members is recogused as locome oo @
straight-line basis over four years.

(11) Exlobition income and other service income
are recognised when the related services are
renderad.

(iii) Rental income is recognised on an accruals
basis m accordance with the terms and
conditions of the tenancy agreements.

{(iv) Infersst mcome 15 recogmsed on a tume
proportion basis,

(v) Dividend income is recognised when the right
to recerve pavinent 1s established.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTIES 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTIES

3. EEE@RECE (8#) 3. EE@EECE (8D

(CONTINUED) (CONTINUED)
(o) EEEF] (0) Employee benefits (o) EEEF (48) (o) Employee benefits (continued)
i) FHEHREERZ (i)  Salaries, annual bonuscs and annual leave are (iv) TEFAREAEE (48) (iv) Defined benefit retirement scheme obligations

§ © R RATHE
TR R B R RS
> A B R
AR -

accrued and recognised as an expense in the
vear in wiich the associaled services are
rendered by employees of the Group.

Ak 5 e A ke YT R F | &2
R (EE) FREnFE
SCHE CUCA D) IBER

(continued)

Service cost and net interest expense (income)
on the net defined benefii hiability {asset) are
recognised in profit or loss, Current service

(i) (RISFEHEHiEs (i) Coniributions to Mandatory Provident Fund as PGS o AHAR i cost is measured as the mcrease w the present
R - B required under the Hong Kong Mandatory b e e
Bt LY : ; ; S e resulting from employes service i the current
HIEG et MRS Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are P g L i d . _

Al Bt i recognised as an expense in profit or loss as 7HER PfL'Tm' 'I%{ﬁ“ period When the benefits of a plan are
b} ; 'E!d : BRI EE 2 - HalH changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the
H el e als [ 7S portion of the changed benefit related to past

(iil) AfEE T T EEE (ii) The Group operates a defined benefit R HIShEATEF service by employees, or the gain or loss on
FRREE S retirement scheme which is ORSO scheme o (e B LT R curtailment, is recognised as an expense in
B Tt R SR G exempted under the Mandatory Provident HRRIE S » profii or loss al the earlier of when the plan
é'["rﬁﬁfﬁ‘ﬂ —-;m-%%:%ikg " Fund Schemes Ordinance. Comtributions (o ﬁrnﬁmxﬁéﬁgﬁ,m , YA amendment or curtathment occurs and when
S _"i"'_ Ry defined bepefit retirement scheme are PPty i,_,J_ = ? g related restmicturing costs or termination
m; 'Eﬂ)ﬁm'@ﬂ{%ﬂqﬂ expensed as incurred. ”+ﬁrﬁ?"§“ﬂ$ﬁﬁf ' benefits are recognisad. Wet interes! expense
BATEE R B ED Ll R REE AR R A R A (income) for the period 15 determined by
Hil - WAREEFR (LS applying the discount rate used to measure the

Frae EiEsr RN defined benefit obligation at the beginning of

{iv) TEFERGTE (iv) Defined benefit retirement scheme obligations g5 B b 4 o MAPSIF the reporting period to the net defined benefit

- g e liabilit set). The dis t rate 15 the yield
S T The Group's net obligation in respect of i St the oo it o tigh iy vk
e AT -2 BR 8 P By defined  benefil  retirement  scheme s i) nkm y i FF_] iﬂlﬁi bands (where there is no deep market in such
FArTR AR - i -:alf:mat_ad separately for each plan by = _f_i i ol = Centits btels: svermit binds) thit Kave
R N estimating the amount of future benefit that SR E AR (AT maturity dates approximating the teems of the
3 41: koo LI R - emp!l:r}@es have emmned 1o retum _fcr their L A T - AL Group’s obligations.
e S e i) service in the cwrent and prior periods: that = B SRR
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value and the fair value of any plan assets 15
deducted. The calculation 15 performed by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results in
a benefit to the Group. the recognised asset is
linited to the presemt value of economie
benefits available in the form of any futre
refinds from the plan or reductions in fihws
contributions to the plan.
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(0] Emplovee benefits (continued)

(1v) Defined benefit retireinent scheme obligations
{continned)

Remeasmrements arising from defined benefit
rehrement plans are recognised m other
cownprehensive meoome  and  reflected
immediately  in  accummlated  losses,
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and
losses. retwn oo plan assets  (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asser)) and any
change m the effect of the asset ceiling
{excluding amounts included in net mterest on
the net defined benefir liability (asser)).

(p) BiE (p) Taxation

A S AR 4 Tt R
B R AR IR 4R -

o S T Y AR O 7
TR AR BT« RESR i F)
B e WS¢ ane 7 P R ) e B
A FE - BE T EEER
AL EC At o A Rl m
0f 2 [ E - P EEE
E U f ¥ 2 P TR R AT
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Tncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from suoplus
hefore taxation as reported in the comsolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
come because il excludes profit or loss items that
are taxable or deductible in other vears. and if further
exchudes profit or loss items that are never taxahle or
deductible.
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(p] Taxation (continned)

Deferred fax is the tax sxpected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between (he carrying
amounis of assets and liabilites in the consohdated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recogmised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recogmised o the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against wlnch
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised of the
temporary  difference aises fiom  assets  and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax
profit nor the accounting profir.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each year-end date and reduced fo the
extent thal it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset fo be recoverad.

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the tax rates that are
expectad to apply in the period when the lability is
seftled or the asset is realised. Deferred lax is
charged or credited to profit or loss. except when it
relates fto ftems charged or eredited to other
comprehensive income and/or directly to reserves, in
which case the defened tax 15 also recogmsed
other comprechensive income andior directly to

equity respectively,
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3. EEWEECE (80

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
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{p) Taxation (continned)

For an investmen! property. there 1s rebutlable
presumption  that its carrving amount will be
recoverad throngh sale, and the measurement of the
relating deferred tax  shall reflect the tax
consequence of recovenng its caying  amount
entirely through sale. This presumption is rebured
if the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a busmess model whose objeclive 15 fo
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over fime,
rather than through sale. in which case the
measurement of the relating deferred tax shall reflect
the tax comsequence of recovenng ils camving
amonnt in that manner.

(q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances
with original maturity of less than three months at

acquisition and cash on hand.

(r} Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
famuily 1s related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group:

(1)  bas sigmficant wfluence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Gronp or of a parent of
the Group.

Close members of the fanuly of a person are

those fanily members who may be expected o

influence, or be influsnced by, that person in
their dealings with the Group.
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3. IEEEPE () 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES
(CONTINUED)
(r) BEELAAL (i) (r) Related parties (continued)

(b) %0 HL% 2% S 6T & T 71 ik
14 BlE L TS B

b=~ =g
i) EroEAEELE
—ERERE

(i) FAFES—LTF

e N
(2 HaE -ad

i S L ] R s =
REEAA)

(iil) &4 Al S =41
&8 nE

(iv) BAERE=0E
fasEt® mH—
b= T s O
B A |

(v) #hH—EBBKE
Flatm - Eaaeslst
Bl =5s A B
AE B S S o]
AL

(vi) ¥ & FIFF & (@) HE
AR AL ]
frel

(vit) &5 (a)(i) 5 5 #2 19 A
e A TN S R
A E R
- EaE AT RS
Al (B Al
A ) P EEEE A
E 3

(b} An entity is related to the Group if any of the
followinz conditions appliss:

(i)

(ii)

(111)
(v)

(v)

(vi)

(wii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same gronp (which means that each
parent. subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

The entity is an associate or joint venfure
of the Group (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of wlich
the Group is a member). or vice versa.

Both the entity and the Group are joiml
ventures of the same Uurd party.

The entity 15 a joint venture of a thurd
entity and the Group is an associate of the
third entity, or vice versa.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benzfit of employees of either
the Group or an entity telated to the

Group.

The enuty is conwolled or jointly
conrrolled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of'a parent of the entity).
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BEm ARG aEIA - B

Wa A « HApARRSUL A LI R
WA+ ST

{TBCEARAEFRULA
R B A
FERh AR
ER A

e S

L LION

2=V N
THEUA (HiEEe)

FUERR IR A
SRRRL A

REVENUE

Revenue  represents

Administrative
stpport service
incoms

Electronic data
interchange
SEIVICE 1NCome

Endorsement fees on
Certificates of
Origin

Exhibition income

Insurance agency
commission

Members®
subsciiptions

Miscellaneous

Rental income
(Note 6)

Secretarial service
income

Trade declaration
income

mcome from  members’
subscriptions. exhibition income and other service
mecome and rental income and is analysed as follows:

2016
HKS

425,600
311,238
5.824.100
08 882 641

1,533,292

6,111,500
40.290

6.554. 728
1,042,730
1.207.288

$121.933 436

299,600
340,431
5.705,655
92218416

1.688.019

3.538.375
62,870

6. 248,354
928,793
1.337.029

$114.367.542
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B A

28 EmA R R ENA
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T R AR R A
FlEWA

TETEUA
BEIEU A

3

OTHER REVENUE

Advertising income
Dividend income
from hsted
Investments
Gain on disposal of
fixed assets
Inauguration
CEremony income
Interest incomes
Senunar income
Sundry meoine

2016
M

400,006
1.469.867

435

1.228 627
674.317
622,976

§4.404,628

386.852
2,355,867

2.910.520

2.516.460
706987
685.116

59,601,802
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6. FREIEISH
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SENR P
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-HESE
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PREAEEACHE)

HENEEE (W E)EE

A ECSTH R D R PR

LI 8 8 2 0BG A BA R &

SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION

The surplus before taxation 15 aroved at after

clharging/{erediting).;

Aunditors”
remumeration

Bad debts wiitten off

Depreciation
- Ohwned assets
- Land

Donations

Exchange difference,

net

{Gain)/loss on
disposal of fixed
assels

Operating leases
charges on land
and buildings

2016 2015

AETC ATT

HES HIKS
§646,008 $621,300
$333.500 51.002.000
1.081.946 990,449
37460 3723511
$1.456.548 51.362.960
§29.086,832 34,372,000
$2.640,351 33492414
$(435) 32.517

$1.077,005

§1.021.176
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6. MIEIEL: ()

PO AR AR5 AL F 578

(&) :

e B R

ETEE
IR {eatE HhEr

(e B FIRE 2 (Fifek16(e))

=R

HEHEEEEH A
CBaEd )

SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The surplus before taxation 15 armved at after

charging/{crediting) (continmed):
2016 2015
AT AT
HKS HES
Salaries and
allowances 38.242.194 36,051,484
Staff training 18,324 27.116
Retirement scheme
contrbutions 1.230.688 1,181,773
Employee benefit
EXpenses
(Note 16ie)) 167.000 163,000
Staff costs §39.658.206 837425373
Rental income from
mvesiinent
properties
(Note 4) (6.554.728)  (6.248.354)
Less: Oulgoings : =
Net rental income 5(6.554.728)

5(6.248.354)
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7. gEflEUEE 7

RISE M (ARG B 383 1
R (AT (RBEBREER)

COMMITTEE MEMBERS® BENEFITS AND
INTERESTS

Particulars of commmttee members' benefits and
ioterests disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the

BE206ERANE L FEEESM ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

8.

iz |

ot R HA A E R
FiIEEs

TAXATION

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive icome represents:

BEAE 7 S B R Companies Ordinance and Companies (Disclosure of 2010 2015
%g%ﬁfd BEERRIT Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation AETT #TT
: are as follows: - HES HEKS
: ; : BIHAFSE Current tax
() s (a) Commirtee members’ emoluments Al - Cumrent year 204,103 95.192
NS A e ED No emoluments paid to or receivable by the - PLFE A e AT - Overprovision
SEBBEMY RS commutliee members dunng the year (2015 HPREIoS _
%ﬁ’:}fﬁﬁﬂ B =ik ik s HIKS$Nil) in respect of their qualifying services. years —(38.058) (39.029)
HEERE gﬂt}‘fﬁ LT A A 256.045 56.163
(2015: %) - MESERE (W17 Deferred tax |
b) e aHEREAY = HiF (b) Consideration by third parties for waldng (Note 17) _948.154 893.249
HEpg e available commmitee members” services o e e S SGib

PR e il s e
HiRTs (REEREEEL
LA SRR RS ) it =5
= FHEM A (2015
) .

() ok - R =S

BEEELSHOGE 2@
EEEREHNEABERSE
A R O R - S
EHHHERS -

(@) BEETrERARG
7 RS

FrEE AR G B B R R
Sh o FRRE B H B (R ]
B Ay R s
[ F b I o =] S @ T
Ir Sy R P A AT E AT
- kR ad) - R
BRI D B R e

No consideration was provided to or receivable
by any third party duorine the year (2015
HESNil) for making available the services of a
person as  a  comodttee member of  the
Association. or in any other capacity while a
committes member.

{c) Loans, quasi-loan and other dealinas

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings made
during the year in favour of commitiee meinbers,
confrolled bodies  corporate and  connected
cutities.

(d) Committee members’ material  interests  in
fransactions, arrangemeants or contracts

There are no other transactions. amangements or
comiracts of significance in relation to the
Association’s business to which the Association
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a commmittee member of the Association
had a matenial nerest, whether duectly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year. except as disclosed in
ihe consolidated financial statements.

(a) FHEFlER YRR LR
B & A haT IR R Rt
Fi#216.5% (2015 : 16.5% )
SHEEN -

{a) Provision for Hong Kong profits fax has been
made at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the Group's
estimnated assessable profits for the year.
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8. ®WE (M|) 8. TAXATION (CONTINUED)
8. Mm@ 8. TAXATION (CONTINUED)
(©) BT A ILE K A5 S {c) The Association was initially granted an
(b) FREERET HESSEE ( LR ER) SRR 1970 exemption under Section 87 of the Hong Kong

{(b) The income tax expense for the vear can be

= A L e B RSO AT reconciled to surphis before taxation per the HEOE 101 B 19864E9 F 81 48 Inland Revenue Ordinance from payment of tax
EibtEHEM T consolidated statement of profit or loss and other S5 S Eo S E pursuant to an order issned by the Inland Revenue
g | comprehensive income as follows: {H;ﬁ%‘ﬂ} 1 EEST]'[T% ET o Diepartment of Hong Kong (the “TRD™) dated
! : ik i J September 10, 1970 and an Order from the then
FRFEEA S « 27 517 1987/88 o
Tosi * G2 I Deputy  Financial Secretary  (Government
iﬁ_}ﬁ ?EJ EHEMRBEERXEEES Secretariat) issued on September 8. 1986 whereby
=% il U AR« JERmEERE the Association 1s exempted *from the payvment of
HES L BT A g B E R prqﬁ;ls 1 in b‘:'es{ne:lr:‘ af mj ﬁrqﬁ}s dirﬁ*g:f frog;_
ik : e A aTELE - GEEeD members " subscriptions and fees for the vears g
ity Sm‘p]“:“ before $5 141,165 518,454,045 g:ﬁ@ -'té'i;‘..,:" h‘ﬁﬁ;}'ﬂ% Efﬁ-_ﬁ assessmient 198788 and subsequent vears of
s SR At ’ o assessment’. The IRD has subsequemly revised
T e i and the Association agreed to the basis on which
TRl T BT Tax on s.j.u'plus the Association has claimed for income from its
:t ﬁ;};:llcable 948707 2,050,016 members as non-taxable. The General Conumitee
PTII, R i SHiE is of the opinion that the basis cwrrently adopted is
hnsEfR e 8 Accelerated tax | appmpri:;];, y adop
depreciation (3.626.935) (371,309)
TR SRR s Tax effect on
jﬁzﬁ;“ﬁr 9. foEwE 9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
@
tax purpose 15,352,451 10,581,841 B inrs
BRI AR Tax cffect on prre=s P
income not A TL FETL
taxable for ) ) HES HES
fxpupose  (11,374330)  (12,152,901) 4 Valuation
SR =L =T i R Y Tax effect of o
tax loss 1 H1H At January 1 267.540.307 264.554.536
S D:l;ﬂiﬁfd_ - (905.355)  (LO12.455) L EE Fair value suplus 19.377,976 2,983,771
LR RERE ' rprovision for
R Dlﬁ?ﬂf ey (38,058) (39.029) #12H31H At December 31 $287,118,283  §267.540,307
: (T3 eferre
{Note 17) 048,154 893,249
BREZH Ingome tax
EXpPCIISE 940,412

$1.204,199
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9. EYE (M)

ESFI SRS - TR
HIFHES T - F2016F12H31H
el A R AT R L BT &
PR I RS TS S - e IRCH)
BE{TARLSORE—FE IS
a] o+ §8 0 S A N
B[ R AHER S o R AT A
AR AT R A -

SRR B R T
[ PSRN 19(b) -

T fhaH A BR S ik 100
L SR e -
hWE L EEEE =TS
= b W L B g ke
B R S AL e (AT
&z BT TAENEES
iR (R AR R AR AT
LSRR {E R « (SEOES IR
1B 4 T R TR S R A A
wHRL LT RBER
FITHEAT «

MALE TR R » 25
FHRET 5 ol ELAE Y 5 -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The Group's investment properties, which are situated
1 Hong Kong and held on a long lease. were valued
by Centaline Swveyors Lunuted, Chartered Swveyors
(*CSL") on an open market value basis as at
December 31, 2016 CSL is an independent firm of
professional valuers with a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and which has recent
valuation experience in the location and category of
the investment property bemg valued.

The mvestment properties are held for rental income
under operating leases, further details of which are set
ont in note 19k) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Tn estimating the fair value of investment properties
and land and buldings i note 10, it 1s the Group’s
policy as deteruuned by the General Commuftes o
engage third party qualified external valuer to perform
the valuation. The management works closely with
the qualified extemal valver to establish the
appropriate valuaton technique and inpuis 1o the
model. and provides the waluer with all necessary
information.  Results of the valuation are analysed m
the light of general muarket situation, and specific
circumsrances relating o the investment properties
and the land and buildings.

The wvaluation has been amived at uwsing direct
comparison method with reference o comparable
transactions available in the relevant market,
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9. BEY=E (H)
APEHEGERE ()

R A A T ey S
LT P EERE
(55 H 6 i # il iU 68 FH &
%) o LEESPEEREN T
W CBUEERIR) ¢

e HEi2 531 H
As at December 31, 2016

EEBATORE
LAE il o S EE
Investment properties [k

and land and buildings Fair value
held by the Group hierarc

1 E B IR
287.118.283 T Level 3
Investment properties
HK$287.118.283

doath BT
373.971.017#T
Land and buildings
HE$373.871.017

N

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valnation processes

{continued)

The following table summarises information regarding
fair value measurements of the Group's investiment
properties and the land and buldings (n particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value
measurements are categonsed (Levels 1 to 3) based on
the degree to which the iputs are observable.

RRITE Y ids 2=
i A S8
Valuation

technique(s)

and kev input(s)

HiEtEREE
Direct cornparison
method

T ARIEE
ERing =gy a
The key mput is
unit sale rate

EIC Sk L
Significant
mnobservable input(s)

L) 25,349 # i
HFEFRAER
(-9 h] - HERE
F BRI - s
TER O R
A=) -
Tlnit sale rate (taking
into accoumt
differences in time,
location. and
individual factors such
as frontage and size of
the property and those
of the reference
properties) of
HEK$23.349 per square
feet on a gross floor
arsa basis.

TAEERE
HR S EE R
RS
Relationship of
uncbservable
inputs to fair
value

FA B At
IR P
(M - =
LAl

An increase in
the unit sale rate
used would
resultina
corresponding
increase in the
fanr value, and
ViCe versa,
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The fair values of the investment properties and the
land and buildings at December 31, 2016 and
Decemuber 31, 2015 were measured usmg valuation
techmicues with significant unobservable mpus and
hence classified within TLevel 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. There has been no transfer into or out of
Level 3 during the year.

N

0 HEYE (W) 9, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
0. EEEE
FIXED ASSETS
- L
2 (i) Fair value measurements and valuation processes {H{‘_,tg
{continued) R :
(B4 R
. ) . Futiiiure, (B A1)
2015 FE12 31 1 MR EHOSE)  fxuesand  Commputer )
As at December 31, 2015 Buildings, Land,  equipment.  equipment. agal
atvaluation at valuation af cost _ atcost Total
AT BT AT I AT
TR s ms omsoms s
_ _ N B E AR R fi Cost/Valuation
RS R T Ll
e R - R HESE S % A gk Relationship of F20155R1 /1A At Jamary 1. 2015 15,668 307 134,887,157 7,754 423 7 308 845 360,688 735
Investment properties [ Valuation ERA TEHERS unobservable i Reclassification (52.296) 52,206
and land and buildings Fair value  rechnique(s) Significant inputs to fair ' '
held by the Group hierarchy  and key input(s) uncbservable input(s)  value B Addrtions 18410 208430 538040
TRETE 3 HERRE I 23,744 e dgop H{r i ey B 2 (2.263,841) (85.178) (2. 19.019)
26754030787 Level3  Directcomparison R FAMER  UGEILT S R
Investment properties method (aFs-EpkRe - HhEE  (@iEein - B [deficity/sorplus (765.772) 1 880001 = 5 1114325
HE$267.540.307 RABBIEE « Jugshr Tk
PG A BER e e T L f420154E12H31H At December 31,2015
LR 'ﬂ‘i‘{iﬁ?ﬁéiﬁ’ﬁﬁ ;g;’fﬁﬁ’ﬂ#ﬁ AN QL‘ o R2016%1A1E  andlamvary L2016 14033535 336767158 5806896 2085396 359,591,085
351,699.693 A7C ThekeyIputss  prgi cale vate (taking:  T8t€ used would e Reclnssification 3522) 3,522 :
Land and buildings unit sale rate oty seveiid result in a
HEE$351.699.693 differences in ime. corresponding by Additions 674,016 177617 851,633
location. and increase in the / : . .
individual factors such  f#ir value. and R Bt KR Ern Lot
as fiontage and size of  ViCE VErsa. S EE Revaluation surpius 1.021,030 21350294 23,371 324
the property and those
of the reference TE20165812H31H At December 31,2016 15553,565 358017432 6,031,965 Z.048.835 382071817
pIDp'EIﬁES} Df F AT H R am S e Er Tl I e e i =l e S e R R
HIK$23,744 per square
feer on a gross floor
area basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
10. EEEE (M) 10.

(a) Bt HRZ MR iritE

#®o liZEWEEES - B

- 2016212 831 1 darh EH Bl
Pid ;- | TR wE s R RN

FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a) The land and bnildines held for own use are
situated in Hong Kong under long-term leases,
The land and buildings are stated at professional
valuation as at December 31, 2016 made by

10. EERE (8)
FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(ke A i) ki i 3 bindiEiet Centaline Surveyors Limited which is the
Furmiture, (Bl iy ai—iﬁﬁi%ﬁ@ £ tgf"tlltﬁfh@ estimated market value in existing use, further
nﬁ_ﬁéﬁi = ﬂ;:j“:ﬂ Eq‘“ﬂ("f:; mﬁ; ﬁ_ﬁg I B aE9 - consolidated financial statements.
BT BT 5 T BT e
s — i s e (b) L it B e o A (R (b) Had the land and buildings not been revalued,
b BLAB ot A B AL IR I they would have been included in the
TatiE Accumulated depreciation 5 ﬁ&[ﬁl‘ﬁfﬁ #43.113 50834557 consolidated financial statements at historical
o ) oy (2015 : 3.203.801850 ) - cost  less  accumulated  depreciation  ai
mrolssELRLE At January 1, 2015 = 7004 764 2091 843 4386657 i 5 3 . HK$3.113.508 (2015: HK$3.203.891).
T Reclassification - (50.757) 50,757
SR Charge for the year 470.949 372,511 355,880 163611 1362960 1. =L 11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
i I T Written back ax “2016/E12H 31 H s Particulars of the subsidiaries as at December 31, 2016
disposals = = (2.259.759) {485.178) [2.744.937) E#m;_l_: Fj E IE TR B 2 =] e e et s
IE (i Witten back on R :
revaluation 470 (372.511) (843 460) . EHES Eﬁﬁ
EMER W 3 A B
2015412 H31H At December 31, 2015 BEE Proportior of
RrolsFELFLH and January 1. 2016 5340137 1.821.083 7,161,220 Place of ownership
At incorporation nterest held by FEETS
B Reclassification - - (3.369) 3,363 Name anid operation the Association Principal activities
SE AR Change for the year 447,976 374602 467,818 166,152 1 456538 '§a§"f’1ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁ%f{ ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂjﬁ HiE e i 100 %{ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ%
TS Written back on disposals (425 425) (217.700) (643.125) CMA Exhibition Services Limited Hong Kong Provision of ex!uhilfmn
’ management services
B LI e Written back on revaluation (447.976) [374.602) —(§22.578) & oy 1 4 1
ERPERSE RisIaRAS Bt 100 R O
FEANAEILASIE At December 31, 2016 L = 5.379.161 1,772,904 7.152.065 CMA Insurance Agent Limited Hong Kong Insurance agent
. ) EEP AR S ST E EH(2002) T 100 HEEDE B B
SR BRI HRET Hong Kong JEES i i
=l - 3 — - 5 CMA Project Managemnen! hiolding Provision of project
F}Eﬂlﬁﬂ:l TH3IH AtDecember3l 2016 515953 565 53538017452 3072804 8275931 $374.919.752 IfZUUET] Linitsd management services
and investooent
F2015412H31H At December 31, 2015 $14.932535  §316.767,158 S466,759 5264313 $352.430,76% e e e .
eploha i3 Tl speg g ] 5 ST e i 100 PSS R R
CMA Secretarial Services Limited Hong Kong Provision of secretarial

VN

S
N

and management
services

.
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12. AtHERE 12.

Eia LRIt - AT ERR
Ail 28R

Ef e Sl Aae s 2 A EE Y
R R T G P A S A
B ORI (REHE) mat
B (FBUR) o BRAFEIEE
SRy A Stk g -

REGEGER  FEBGED
SRR TEEREECERE
HR{E R e d = B 78 B B R S
BHEBEGSFDERE (2015
1,206,950 ) -

13, JESGRIE B B sk Ls.

FEYSRIR

HLA L 2B
T RTEfIE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

2016 2015

AL T

HES HES
Equity securities
listed in Hong

Kong, at fair value 330,369,234 $29.305.815

Fair values of histed equity securities are denved
from quoted prices (unadjusted) m active makets
for identical assets. The fair value measurements
are categorised within Level 1 of the fair value
Inerarchy and there were no transfers between the
levels during the year,

In the opmmon of the Geperal Commmutize, there 15
no significant or prolenged decline in the fair value
of the listed equity securities during the vear and
accordingly.  no  impairment  loss (2015
HE$1.206.950) has been recognised in profit or
loss.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2016 2015

AT #

HE$ HES

Accounts receivables 2.745.352 2.067.385

Other receivables 1.860.426 1,348,354
Deposits and

prepavinents 1.116.777 714213

$5.722.555  34.129.952
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13. MRS B AR (4K 13.

(a) YT B
RSB P
RN 528 - FRdp s
B (5 T U] AR TR -
FEBLIDL R RS
HERTTE S -

AR AR SEE0E
fEHE 333,500 #E7 (2015 :
1,008,000 #-r ) = R (A M
i -

(b) g {8 S HEA T ST
(R ks e i gt B IR

i R NSRRI A 22 RR e o i
HF:

At s Sl

wEEE 1{EH
WmEN 1 3MA
i 3 A L E

12 H 3L H

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINTED)

{a) Impainnent of accounts receivables

Impairment losses in respect of accounts
receivables are recorded using a provision
account unless the management 1s satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
the impairment loss is written off against
accounts receivables directly.

During the year. the Group’s accounts

receivables of HK$333.500 (2015:
HE%1.008.000) was determuned to be impaired
and written off accordingly.

(b) Accounts receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of accounts receivables
that are neither individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired are as follows:

2016 2015
HEr #m
HES$ HKS
Neither past due
nor impaired 1,214,806 852,101
Less than 1
month past due 72317 198,950
| to 3 months
past due 63.671 165,683
Over 3 months
past due 1.394.558 850.651

1.530.546 1215284

At December 31 £2,745.352  52.067.385

N
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13.  FEUSmIOE B Ao () 13.

(b) fERE A FHE TS
(£8 )

£ 3 E {8 itk 1 = U IT
T L % (8 B A SR B A L
LBNBIIERS - BILEE
e EREEEHRE S
HARICEMECCEE) Bk
GEBREIW Aol Rl E - A
IR o S
Al ke a% SES i Ry A T RIS
ot -

(] A MR8 K H-fih iU ER
TEIFTEN] 1 S -

4. SBiTEF - SRREEEED 14.

It 2013 £ - Aw A ERE L5
HHEPERERGY LEEREE:
HIRLE - FRiEerigE L » [
KA P e e I TR - Rt
B 1,909,500 #er - RS EE
g« H#EERE CE - Cabon
Trust B Carbonfund org &3 12
G R R E BT
g e HEEE TR

Heaad b EE AR » v A0 x
PERCA PR B el R AV E]
#-HER2013E8F 1 HHE
¥ WA 20156 11 A 30 H5
Be o HiH R R R 2EE R 2016
3 E 0 HEE -

VN

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINTUED)

(b) Accounts receivables that are pot impaired
(continued)

Receivables that were past due but nof impaired
relate to a mmmber of mdependent customers
that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management
believes (hat 0o mmpamment provision 1s
necessary i respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

(c) All trade and other receivables are expected to
be recovered or utilised within one year.

BANK BALANCES - DESIGNATED AND
DEFERRED PROJECT SPONSORSHIP

In 2013, the Group applied fo the Government for
financial assistance of FK$1.909500 from the
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Fund
for 1ts related company, CMA  Industaal
Development Foundation Limited - CMA Testing
and Cerfification [aboratories, to camy out a
project. namely “Awareness Programune fo
Enhance Hong Kong Manufacmring SMEs
Understanding of International *Carbon Footprint™
Certification and Mark., Ieading to Higher
Recognition of Local Products” Carbon Emussion
Level™ which is jointly organised and operated with
The Honz Kong University of Science and
Technology, The Carbon Trust and Carbonfund.org
Foundation. The project commenced on August 1,
2013 and was completed on November 30. 2013,
The balance of the f[pancial assistance was
refunded 1o the Government on March 9, 2016,
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14. TR - Tt RBEFEEER 14.
()

REEREAEE E - RE R BT &
=] W SRR R A A
Frafas & (e 15) =@
BB A ¢ IR RE A TR
THRFEEERSFEEOHLNHE
e

i 3 TR P S o PR G I i
T s

BANK BALANCES - DESIGNATED AND
DEFERRED PROJECT SPONSORSHIP
(CONTINUED)

At the vear-end dare, the Gronp held Tmst Fund on
behalf of related companies. CMA Choi Chenng
Kok Prevocational School Trost and CMA
Secondary School Trust (Note 13). The Group was
assigned as tmstee to sef up separate bank accounts
to momtor the vsage of the fund.

Details of movements in the bank accounts during
the vear are analysed as follows:

BEE WA ]
Deferred project MR gt
sponsorship Oiber fund Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 X6 2015
=N B Emnr B 2 B
HES HES HES$ HES HES HES
#1H1H At January | 289,950 137,092 35,517 < 318967 137,082
FMEMFRE Pands received 36,671 613,900 134,575 48,117 171.246 661,617
EEiTHE  Bank mierest
recerved 2 5 3 - 5 5
326,623 750,597 173 395 48117 S00.018 798.714
EffEeE Payment made {161,313) {460.647) (70,733} (9300) (232.045)  (469.947)
blaa 3 Balance refimd (165,310) - - - {165.310) =
P12H3H At December 31§ _ $289 950 1102 662 $33.817  Sl102.662 $328.767

N
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15, (e B = s 15. TRADFE AND OTHER PAYABLES

l6. {@E#EF (M) 16. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

2016 2015 A D e A Tl S = The Scheme exposes the Group actarial risks, such
AT B B v e - SRS as fterest rate risk, investment risk and longevity
HKS HKS 2= e o SRy A nsk, Information is disclosed below:
FEEAI Rt
HE o O LA RS (a) Accounts and other g A
R R Tﬁﬁzl’e:&;}oﬂler A I (a) ThEEoRr B RS (a) The amounts recognised in the consolidated
o deposits 1799427 1774083 TREAIT Sqimonl ok Feeacali pion . e
$33577.068  $37.467.938 2016 2015
T AT
= ;i : ; : HES HES
(a) JE {2k i W (2= {a) Accounts and other payables include trust fund g
P Sy EEEEAEERE Present value of the
% ; Lﬂﬁgﬁmﬁ PEET held on behalf of a related company (note 14). 2 debinei banchi
MEstEEE (e 14) - abligation (5.655,000)  (5.900.000)
_ st RE LSRR Fair value of
(b) P73 M { AR 98 e H A B £ (b} All mrade and other payables are expected to be Scheme assets 6201000  6.211.000
S IETAERLE | SENGEE settled within one year.
546,000 £311.000
16. (REIEF] 16, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS o Represenied by:
P [ R g BRI R Employee benefits represent excess in/shortfall of &E Assets 866,000 721.000
Al BEisfiRoksr# - me contributions to a defined benefit retrement scheme §E Liahilities (320.000) (410.000)

Al e At S ER A
- FHEBEFETLENSTH
srbm R T ALY - AT E( L
(FREHE AT « IREMRE (IR
gk BRG]} GEM » MG
B {rEIrERANEE B
EEE SR B S R A -

{the “Scheme™) which provides pension benefits for
emplovees pon retirement. Contriburions are made
based on a percentage of the employees basic salaries
under the Scheme. The Scheme i1s formally
established vnder the trust and 1s re@stered under the
Occupational Refirement Schemes Ordinance and is
admimstered by an mdependenl trustee with the
assets held sepatately fiom the Group.

F S T
PR e
i = #ATIT « 5 A

$546.000 £311.000

A portion of the above liability 18 expecied to be
settled after more than one vear. However, it is
not practicable to segregate this amount from the

S b i A Amounts ble in the next twelve months. as
<1208 H B BB (T IS s i T
: Pl P Tutwre contibuons will also relate to future
R s s G S Actiarial valuation has been performed on the jﬁfﬁf_?ﬂ?ﬂ” 5 services rendered and fume changes in acmarial
I g
HESSE 2016 F 125 31 Scheme assets as al Decemnber 31. 2016 by Willis ﬁ}&@%}tf}:ﬁﬁfﬁ;ﬁﬁ% assumptions and market conditions. The expected
Sak IS A T Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited using the (i & A e AR B annual contubution to the Scheme of the Group

EHETTINE -

VN

projected unit credit method.

ax R IR - T
Hir-ar 320178212 H 31 [
IF RS R EEAGE
(eat B LR -

for the wear ending December 31, 2017 1s
HESNil.
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6. (@EMEF (M)

(b)

(e)

st e AR L, PIEE ¢

i3 5%
ST

a FEI {5

AREBFARNEEE
&) -

HW1H1H

Eial &
-t RS R AT R R
=

-t dsm s B S L ATk
RdrEyEsa

i LB AR

Fl B A
el gl s

B*12E31H

VN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

16, EMPLOYEFE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

16. (@EEF (8) 15, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
{b) Scheme assets consist of the following: 2 ;
2016 2015 ) AERFEENHREZEY (€) Movements in the present value of the defined
g e (5E) . benefit obligation (contintied):
HKS HEKS ) : ; -
HEBENREEFIamm The weighted average duration of the defined
Bonds 960.000 1.040.000 T EE R TIE benefit oblication of the Group is 7.3 years
Money ' {2015 ' B.6IE) = {2015: 8.6 years).
instruments 5,390,000 5,171,000
Benefits paid from (d) EffEEED {d) Movements in Scheme assets ;
Scheme assets {142.000) o
2016 2015
$6.201.000  $6,211.000 T T
HES HES$
(c) Mm.’ememg m the present value of the defined w1H1A At January 1 6.211.000 6.122.000
benefit obligation: AL EapE s Benefits paid by the
3016 2018 Scheme (279.000)  (172.000)
7t Frree ’F”*J.EJ?EI A e Interest income 93000 116.000
HEKS e SREELE CF s Return on Seheme
Bl A assels. excluding
At January 1 3.900,000 5.769.000 inferest income 176.000 145.000
Rﬁﬂ‘;’;‘:ﬁ H12H31H At December 31 $6.201.000  $6,211,000
arising from
Liability
experience (103.000) (172,000)
- Actuarial
(gains )y losses
arising from
changes in
financial
assmnprions (123.000) 194,000
(226,000) 22,000
Benefits paid
from the Scheme (279.000) (172.000)
Interest cost 89.000 110.000
Cugrent service
cost 1 71.000 171,000
At December 31 $5.655.000 £3.000.000

N
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6. (@EMEF () 16, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 16. (@EEF (8) 15, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
(e) FréFESHEiEREM = {e) Amownts recopmsed m  the consolidated () EEREEL RS (f) Sigmficanl actuanal assunptions and seositivaty
FETERET S SRR - statemnent  of profit and loss and other WO F analvsis are as follows:
comprehensive income are as follows:
2014 2015
2016 2013
o ko BEE 32 Discount rate 1.80% 1.50%
HES HKS A HCHT S 1 Futute salary
inerease 4.50%q 4.50%
THABE R Cunrent service cost 171.000 171.000 R - -
B S S AR L A Net inferest income BB EERE The be]ov._f a;alyms shows how the defined
5 ol detined benefit 2 LU 0.25% ) » BE benefit obligation as al December 31, 2016 and
' liabilities (4000)  (6.000) 18 Fl 5 722015 %2 2016 2012 Wl Tve ieicasol deticesed g 8
B R O B O] B IO result of a 0.25% (2015: 0.25%) change in the
— Pk - b 5 £ . . " " r
RIS TR i e Ay stgnificant actuarial assumptions:
& ([ o6) rec%‘@isr;din
it b iR
(Note 6) L0 163.000 Increase in - Decrease in
5% 259
R () Actuarial OJ%T; uiﬂi;;
{zains)/losses (226.000) 22.000 rHKS HKS
s E AT (CHEfEH Retumn on Scheme 2016 2016
B k) assets, excluding e o
iterest income {176.000) { 145.000) Hﬂifﬁ_-%— Discount ra.te (101.790) 101,790
b e e e Rate of pay increase 101,790 (96,135)
TRl S i SR P REREAY Total amounts
S recognised in other 2015 2015
comprehensive HETR 55 Dhscount rate (123.900) 123,900
income 402.000 (123.000 A iy < FER Rate of pay increase 118,000 (123,500)
SEIRFE] (Ur A Taotal defined benefit
(income)expense  $(235.000) $42.000 L EE S TIREER The above sensitivity analysis is based on the

R % Y 4 105 98 & 15 e RR
o RIS
H e A HERAKE -

assumption that changes in actarial assumptions
are not correlated and therefore it does not take

mto account the comelations between the
actuaral asswnptions.
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17. WEEFRIE (Sff) ~EE
DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS

PeznsEIF LB

i e R )
(2t &)

FedCr T T A
AR

FroisE1IZH B
BIsELHIB

T dRaa TR
(AL 8

T b

H216E12H N HE

At Tanuary 1, 2015

Crediticharg) o profit
or loss (MNote 8)

Cradit/{charge) to other

eomprel pnsve
M

At December 31 2015
and Tanuary 1, 2016

Charge to profit or loss
(Mote £)

Charge to other
comprelensive

WLCOTe

At December 31, 2016

priifEia]

Ei ] o

Accelerated L=k gl
HEE LRSS mx  Employee kst
Provisions ~ Taxloss  deprepiation  benefits Toml
AETT HETE FETE HRTT AT
HKS HK$ HES HES HES
28361 B4ASS48  (16822645)  [PE5478) (8573814
(9.512) (895,240 {2.208) §.712 {893,249
: + 05931 (20.295) 485638
23.850 790707 (16318923 (2770610  (8.951.427)
(852)  (927.7139) {10.403) {9, LE0) (948.154)
(411 7811 {66 3300 (4985 1113
$22.090 $6,662.968 S(16.761.107) §(352.551) S${10427.692)
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18, FHARRRE 18

#»1H1H
EREH

TS
W12 H 31 H

19. ARk

() A SEMULEE T ST
Vi RAEI 2 AL
P -

B2 2016 fF 12 5 31 H » &
SEBHRYS T TR ST
B0t B RIE T 2 BT B
AR

15N

1 2 54

12, PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

2016 2015
T AT
HKS HES
At Jammary 1 316,235 592,732
Utilised during the
o 2 (306,820)
Refind for the year 2 230.323
At December 31 £516.235 516,235

19. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

{a) The Group entered into non-cancellable
operating lease arrangements with landlords for
terms of one to two years:

At December 31, 2016. the Group has tolal future
minimmm lease pavments under non-cancellable
operating leases payable as follows:

2016 2015
AT A
HES HES$
Not later than
DI year 499,637 Je4.230
Later than one
year and not
later than five
Vears 1,042 110551
£300.679 §474.781
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19, FEEHEHEF (M)

(b) HEE SRR S E S8
diHR EYEE - HALES
HREHIE34F « i ol
i L e S e Sl R
$EY] - T BT SR
Hils -

F20164E12 531 H « T E
S e b e
H (& 1 (S s
T

4Ery
L SR

(CONTINUED)

19, OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(b) The Group has leased out the investment
properties under operating leases. The leasas
typically run for an imitial period of one to three
years, with an option to renew the lease after

that date ar which tme all

ferms  are

renegotiated. ™None of (he leases mcludes

contingent rentals.

At December 31, 2016, the Group has total
firture rental receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

2016 2015
i T
HKS HKS
Not later than one
vedr 4509097 5415313
Later than one
year and not
later than five
vears J.182.385 1.899.629
ST.691.482 37314942
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20. BEIEA A5
(a) FEEFERN - S SR
AR PR SR
T - HERHTIE B B
i A O @A R o5
8l

3 B 5 R B AR U ALK
H

- FEELE
- B ]

LR SRR

Wil HE T SR
i -

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the vear, the Group has the following
material transactions with related parties which
were camled outl i the ondipary course of

business at market price:
2016 2015
HTT AT
HES HES
Sales of goods,
exhibition and
gvent income
and other
SEIVICES ICOMme
from
- conumittee
meimbers 5.900 579 6,461,630
- related
companies 2.053.399 3,024,286
§8.053.178 $9 485916
Sponzorship made
o related
company S215.555 £531,800

Certain  directors of related companies are
cominitiee members of the Group.

N
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21. FEGTHE R AT () 21, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

20. PEEALRCH (#)

(b) EREIEAEHE

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Key management compensation

LA BT E R T
it

FEEF A L - BFERMH

AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimate of fair value of land ond buildings and
investinent praperiies

The land and buildings and investment properties of

2016 2015
BT Heor i e L L ATV | the Group’s were revalued at December 31, 2016 by
'}st Plf(ii {52 i 0 T S e R an mdependent  professional  property  valuer,
FE TR T B T B Centaline Surveyors Limited, on an open market
CEHE S IR Sh i A value basis with reference to recemt transaction
R B T Uﬂ';eml AT L 2016 1 12 5 31 [ prices of units in the same building and/or similar
E?i?;ﬂ 11568026 11917676 HEITHS « BEFTIRTY ﬂ’%ﬁﬁ propertics assuming sales with its existing state, free
{BFITET Post_ermploiient T T {46 B 58 T LRy o 8 o from an encumbrances and in reasonable internal
o benefits 114,000 132.000 B LLHET TG - G I condition.
Hfih EHR Other long-term BEERLIEEIRT - HEENA
henefits = - & R AR SR & -
e d=EiEs] Termination
Beteils . : 2. BT pR 22, FINANCTAL RISK MANAGEMENT
$11,682.926  $12.049.676 HE ] A e e The Group's palicy is to maintain a hich desree of
e B 7 A T R T S T B 1p’s policy gh degr
e - RS HEEhHE RS financial control. Cash management activities are
B 8BS T R i s A AR B 3 directed bv the Fﬁlﬂﬂct:.‘ Staﬂ@iﬂg Committee and
2. TEesHHER At 21, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS THEEE » {0 igams SHRuebg A sty Tini Dejeioin o

FAEREF -G REEERD
B2 (5 27 B I ) B S 42
BB T R R

A BB S SRR

IR (FAwGaraeal)
39 BRAUIES|  PRIE R VB
BEOEHIFTHEEEM - }
AEEREFENHE - T3
Brigferh - FEEEE
1 4 0 0 (R A e A e S
fERE » BLE A SR B THGT 3 A %
1O & ATEF Y o A B i P

REAF -

VN

AND ESTIMATES

The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assers and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of available-for-sale investiments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 when
determining whether an investment i available-for-
sale foancial  asset 15 other-than-temporanty
umpaired. This determipation requires significant
judgment. In making this judoment. the Group
evaluates, among other factors. the duration and
extent to which the fair value of an mnvestment 1s
less than its cost, and the expected time span the
Group will hold on to this investment.

BE - A TS 1 AR
= -

FEMER S ' ERATHET 2
GENEEEETT  BRESH
HaengnglliEoss

(a) THagREEE

17 R L P T i R P S (B -
T « FIRELAEE
ol S0l Al SEite e g
e T ELEJEEE(L - e
BECGEYCR TR R -
A W T L S
HhmEogEFRE S A
fir [l B A A e 8 R T
T APLTT o S 1 R e -

enhance nisk management. control and the best
utilisation of financial resources of the Group.

The Group owns assets and conducts its activities
mainly in Hong Kong with its cash flows
substantially denonunated in Hong Kong dollars.

(a) Market risk

Market risk represents the potential Ioss that
can be eansed by a change in the market value
of fnancial mstrumenis and investment
properties. The Group's exposure to market
risk is determined by a mumber of factors,
including  interest rates, forelgm  Ccurrency
exchange rate and market velatlity, The Group

conducts its investment operations in a manmer
that seeks to exploit the potential gains in the

market, while limiting its exposure to market

declines.

y.
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22, ﬁﬁmm (&8 22, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED) 2. HEEESE () 33, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
(b) Fl=m e (b} Imterestrate risk
HiEE > fl =R T EEY The Group’s exposure to market risk for (&) ey iEm e (e) Liguidity risk
TENEERAREE - & changes 1 wmterest rate relates pnmanly (o its RN ERNERE The Group’s cash management policy s 1o

B LUR RS AR P F 2a0m )
W B S A ey FEELH
o AR SR
YRR - S R

interest bearing assers and liabilities.  The
Group manages its interest rate exposure with a
focus on reducing the Group’s overall cost of
debt and exposure to changes in interest rate.
Management closely monitors the exposure to

BB R RO T R A R S
oK BERRE TR AT R
HEETPERENS - &
HEirls HaTAR BRI sR{T

tegularly  monitor  curent  and  expected
liquidity requirements. to  ensure  that it
maintams  suflicient reserves of cash  for
medinm to long-term investment inchuding in
Hong Kong dollars fixed deposits with good

e S A S B AR B, interest rate and fluctuation relating to nterest Tt TEJE%E@;‘E?J?H%E credit ratings banks and marketable secunties
rates. The General Conummittee considers that {EATEE S - 5 R which are readily convertible inte known
the Group’s exposiire to interest rate tisk is not BRI EMNR SRS amounts of cash and which are subject to no or
significant. S R A o - insufficient change in value.

(o) HsE s (¢) Currency risk
L o R = 0 B S The General C ittee, having idered th
v B ] e Tl R L T The Group's currency exposures primarily arise PLULLAT B BRI - s - Eamses i ] ey g

AR - A E b At
S R F HIHIRCE
FEL - M aaE s SR

from its representative office in Guangzhou,
delegations to China and Renmunbi bank fixed
deposits. The General Commmittee considers
that the Group’s exposure to currency risk is

S 7 G B Y 5 1 R R A 1
HEEE T B st » W e
SR R RLT S I A i
AR -

operations and financial posibons of the Group.
reviewed their sensitivity in response to changes and
are of the opinion that the changes on the above
financial risk factors would not have any significant

S R R (T - St unpact of the consolidated financial statements.
(d) EEEE {d) Credit risk
HEEEE R T ERE The Group’s credit nisk is primarily attribulable

PR SURRE « AL SR
R TE SRR A REeK + AR
DR E R RN
AT 22 (9 {E e - sEFEL
HEHRAR « HCHTFL P sy
e DU A (E B e
fig « BB R
i fE i A - BRI R
SLE I - AR
SRR SRR IR
SRR R0 5 S f H
WREDE SRR RARER
e RLHE -

VN

to rental, other trade and service recervables.
The exposures to these credit risks are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis by established
credit policies. In respect of rental receivables,
sufficient rental deposits from tenants are held
fo cover potential exposure to credit risk
Further evaluations are made for the costomers
with reference (o their repaymenl lustory and
financial strength, as well as the economic
environment in which the customers operate.
The Group has no significant concentrabions of
credit sk, The maxinmun exposwre fo credit
risk 15 represented by the earrving amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated
slatement of financial position.
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23. A BRI R

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FOSITION

AR E
R

g Pagali &
oIt
fi RSB

il E B
0 7 L
HfTLaT — B

T4 AT

i) B
HE R R B e
o PR

BRFRAE R
Rl

A BIE AR

£ PO e £8 < S A

RERE

o5 Bk S G i

EfRE
&t

Nop-current assers
Investment properties

Fixed assets

Tnvestments in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale investments
Employee benefits

Current assefs

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances - designated
Cash and bank balances

Current labilities
Trade and other payables
Met carrent assefs

Total assets less current liabilities
MNon-vurrent hiabilities

Deferred tax Habilities

Provision for long service payments

NET ASSETS

Surpluses and reserves

Accimulated swrpluses
Reserves

2016 2015
HEKS$ HKS
342,863,964 319,937,326
319,008.630 299,789,824
15 7
30,369,234 29,305,815
— 566,000 — 721,000
603.107.843 640,753,072
54,522,424 58,545,752
102,662 38,817
B3.924.932 108,147,410
138 550,018 166,731,088
(4B,457.515) (60,548,309)
90,002,503 106,183.67%
783,200,346 755,037,651
7049777 6,611,203
482235 4§2.235
(8.432.012) (7,093,528}
$774,768.334 $748,844,123
373.800.306 372,684,795
400,959,028 376,159,328

$774,768.354

F2017 5 T B 27 ODESEarEa it R Basicd iy - Il FRIAERERE
Approved and authorised for issue by the General Comunittee on July 27, 2017 and signed on behalf by

$748.844.123
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24. FEEGRGEERTE
COMPANY LEVEL RESERVE MOVEMENT

2015 E1H 1B

2015 FERE L EE)

- IR

i HE e
i

BRE + SHH

FA0ISEH M E
B2IGELHIB

016 EE L)
- AR

- RS

e P
Fr2o6fE12 8318

At Tannary 1, 2015

Change m equaty for
2015

- Surplus for the year
- Other
comprehensive

MCOie

Transfers, net

At December 31,2015
and January 1, 2016

Change in equity for
2016

- Strplus for the vear

- Other
comrprehensive
mncoms

Transfers. net

At December 21 2016

N

HEE _
{38 FHEGR
b oF, i) Asset  HEHlfibte R
Accumnlatad revaluation Special  President Li i
surpluses reserve  pesenve fimd  special fiund Total
AT L # AT AT HETT
HES HES HES HES HES
361722208 566689 557 13870294 32262059
16,808 458 - 16,848 458
70975 {1,556,713) 200,000 1,05% 344 (226, 394)
(5,916,846 5916846
372684795 55112884 19 987,140 1059344 748844123
5701211 F a1zl
214585 20,327,179 - (318.774) 200,223 000
(4791205} - 4791 795
$373.800 306 $375440,023 324778435 540570 5774768 334

T HGEEE R RO & B R Ry » (RS HERE T3 » & ~ ISR S AR ST

O E MR «

Special reserve find and President L1 special fund are established with the objects to support. advance and
promote mdustry. brand. exhibition. education and all eharitable activities and projecs.

E=5 53 (5 Rk

Li Sau Hung Eddy N Wing Ka

& & HMEZERT TR

President Chairman. Finance Standing Committes

N

.

b}
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25. FEHREHR

GRS 2017 4 3 A 30 HiE
B BRI I R
11 20 FIEHHK 1.000 Bt
B 2017 46 7 1 HEEET(E
A & i TR
BRI -

26. EFEMHEEARLE 2016 &£ 12
31 HEREPNER s #=AERT
SCER R R R

BELGEaSUBEERTH
Ik FEEE LGOS
TAGYELE 2016 5F 12 H 31 H4F
FEPY ] A L B S AR ET ~
BN R P (7R E R
=2 U

A5 ME o P AL R SR & R
o5 1 2R R o O T P e Y 2
& B HAI AL - REEHEE
i P % S A i AR S R 5 R AL
it 70 e I A 6 R B A T
AR R IR oA ¢

25 EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR-END
DATE

The General Commitiee has resolved in the meeting
on March 30, 2017 for committing to provide
HE$10M for jointly organising the “fH| S EH"”
comcert with Hong Kong Association of Culmniral
Industries Limited on July 1. 2017 for celebrating
Hong Kong SAR s 20th Anmiversary.

26, POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Up to the date of issue of these comsolidated
financial statements, the HEICPA has issued
various amendments. new  standards  and
interpretations (“New HKFRSs”) which are not yet
effective for {he accouniing year ended December
31, 2016.

The Group 15 m the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these New
HEKFRSs is expected to be in the year of initial
application. So far, il has concluded that the
adoption of these New HEKFRSs 13 unlikely o have
any significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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